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MINUTES

26" ACER Administrative Board meeting
Tuesday, 7 June 2016, 9.00 - 13.00
Ljubljana, Trg republike 3, 6! floor BIG meeting room

Present:

Dr Romana Jordan, Chair, Member.

Mr Jochen Penker, Vice-Chair, Member

Mr Rene Tammist, Member,

Ms Agnieszka Kazmierczak, Member, via videoconference, with proxy from Mr Dominique
Ristori

Mr Georgios Shammas, Member,

Mr Pal Kovacs, Alternate Member, with voting right,

Mr Uwe Leprich, Alternate Member, without voting right,
Mr Alberto Pototschnig, Director of ACER, Observer,

Lord John Mogg, Chair of the Board of Regulators, Observer,
Ms Marie-Christine Jalabert, Adviser

Ms Isabel Rosenbrock, Adviser.

Main conclusions of the meeting

1.) The Board underlined the risks associated with the lack of human
resources at the Agency. The Board asked the Director to prepare an action
plan on how to address this issue with the EU policy-makers.

2.) The Chair declared the urgency and that the written procedure in line
with article 9 of the Rules of Procedure would be launched to adopt the
Annual Activity Report for 2015. The Board approved the assessment of the
Annual Activity Report, subject to incorporation of comments raised.

3.) The Board adopted the decision on the appointment of two members as
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reporting officers for the assessment of the annual performance of the
Director (ANNEX 1).

4.) The Board asked the Director and the Commission to find a technical
solution regarding the financial compensation of the AB and BoA members,
and to report back at its next meeting.

5.) The Board asked the Commission to provide information on the entire list
of BoA applications. The Chair declared the urgency for the appointment of
the new Board of Appeal members, so that a written procedure could be
launched when the BoR provides its Opinion.

6.) The Administrative Board adopted its Opinion on the final accounts of the
Agency as drawn up by the Director in accordance with Article 24(4) and (5)
of the founding Regulation (ANNEX 2).

7.) The Board took note of the intention of the Director to write a Chapter in
a forthcoming book marking the 20th anniversary of the establishment of the
Italian NRA. However, the Board was of the opinion that the exceptional time
ceiling granted in AB Decision 24-2015 on the permission to the Director to
engage in academic cooperation with the FSR in 2016 should not be
extended further.

8.) The Board adopted the Decision on the application by analogy of the new
Commission decision C(2015)9720 on Article 55a of the Staff Regulations
and Annex IVa thereto concerning part-time work, which will replace the
previous decision on the matter (ANNEX 3).

9.) The Board agreed that the State of Play of Implementing Rules becomes
a standing item on the agenda of the AB as necessary.

10.) The Board decided to discuss in detail the building file at its next
meeting in September.

Opening

1. Approval of the Agenda

Upon request by the Commission the building file was added as point AOB of the
agenda.The following agenda of the 26" ACER Administrative Board meeting was then
approved(riy:

26" ACER Administrative Board meeting
Tuesday, 7 June 2016, 9.00 — 13.00
Ljubljana, Trg republike 3, 6" floor BIG meeting room
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DRAFT AGENDA V5
Agenda Topics Accompanying documents Rapporteur
Opening
1. Approval of the agenda Doc 1 for approval AB Chair
2. Minutes of the 25" ACER Docs 2.1 and 2.2 for approval | AB Chair
g)dmlnlstratlve Board (Part 1 and Part Doc 2.3 for information
Reporting on developments
3. Report on the written procedures Oral update ACER Director
4. Report on ACER developments and | Oral Update ACER Director
on the activities of the Board of BoR Chair
Regulators
5. Budgetary developments 2017 Oral update ACER Director
European
Commission
6. 2016 AB Decisions, by delegation of | Docs 6.1, 6.2, 6.3, 6.4 for AB Chair
the Administrative Board to the information
Chairman via Decision AB
05bis/2010 of 21 September 2010
General ACER work
7. Annual Activity Report for 2015 Doc 7 for information ACER Director
8. AB Decision on appointment of two | Doc 8 for adoption AB Chair
members as reporting officers for
assessment of the annual
performance of the Director
9. Discharge 2014 Doc 9 for information ACER Director
10. MoU with third countries Oral update ACER Director
11. Declarations of Interest Oral update AB Chair
12. Proposal for a financial Oral update European
compensation to AB members Commission
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Agenda Topics

13.

Appointment of the new Board of
Appeal members

Accompanying documents

Doc 13 for information

Rapporteur

European
Commission

AB Chair

Administrative Work

14.

AB opinion on the 2015 Annual
Accounts of ACER

Doc 14 for adoption

ACER Director

15.

Permission to the Director for an
outside activity

For authorisation
Doc 15 for information

ACER Director
AB Chair

16.

Commission Decision C(2015)9720
on Article 55a of the Staff
Regulations and Annex IVa thereto
concerning part-time work by analogy
{in application of Article 110(2) of the
Staff Regulations

Doc 16 for approval
Doc 16.1 for information

ACER Director

17.

State of play of Implementing Rules
(IR)

Doc 17 for information

ACER Director

18.

AB Delegation to the Chair for the
appointment of the BoR members

Doc 18 for information

AB Chair

AOB
Building file

Commission

*The Col Review Pane! will take place on 7 June from 14-15h in the small meeting room on
the 6™ floor.

2. Minutes of the 25th ACER Administrative Board

The Chair informed the Members that Lord Mogg and Jorge Vasconcelos sent some
comments on the minutes of the 25" AB meeting, which took place on 28 January
(Part 1l). These comments were circulated in track changes. All comments were
included in the final text circulated for adoption.

Conclusion; The minutes of the 25t Administrative Board meeting (Parts | and Il

were approved without further comments.
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3. Minutes of the 25th ACER Administrative Board

The Director made an oral presentation on the written procedures that took place
since the last AB meeting.

There were two written procedures. The first was concluded on 25 March 2016, when
Mr Guy Lentz was appointed the AB member taking part in the 2016 Conflict of
Interest Review Panel, to examine the declarations of the Chair and the Vice-Chair.

The second one was concluded on 4 April, when the following decisions were
adopted:

AB Decision on implementing rules governing the reclassification procedure for
contract staff;

AB Decision on implementing rules governing the reclassification procedure for
temporary staff; and

AB Decision on implementing rules on working time.

With these adoptions the AB also approved the following clarification regarding the
two decisions concerning the reclassification of temporary staff and contract staff:

»AS regards the composition of the Joint Reclassification Committee, as laid down in
Article 2.1 of Annex | to Decision AB No 6/2016 and Decision AB No 7/2016, the
Administrative Board wishes to clarify, for the avoidance of doubt, that the reference
to the member being ‘the most senior in the highest grade” refers to the Agency’s
Head of Department having the highest grade and with most seniority in the grade,
apart from the Head of Administration who is already foreseen to be chairing this
Committee.”

Conclusion: The AB decided to include the above reference in the minutes of the AB
meeting.

4. Report on ACER developments and on the activities of the Board of
Regulators

The Director made a presentation on the recent development at the Agency.

On human resources, he said that currently there are 82 positions in place, and the
Agency expects to fill 92 positions by the end of 2016. While the Agency has been
allocated 15 additional temporary agent posts in 2016 compared to 2015, its human
resources remain significantly below the Agency’s assessment of the staff it would
need to cater to the requirements foreseen within its current mandate. On the budget,
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the Director said that the Agency’s draft 2017 budget foresees 33 additional posts
(29 of which were already requested in 2016, but not authorised). It also includes €
2.4 million in operational expenditure related to the implementation of REMIT, to
cover the licence fees for the non-proprietary parts of its IT system and some
expansion to deal with the unexpected enlarged scope of the project.

The European Commission is still to publish its draft EU Budget for 2017. However,
the first indications suggest that the Commission not only will not propose an
increase in the Agency’s resources, but will propose a decrease of one temporary
agent post.

Currently there are 22 nationalities at ACER and 6 SNEs (including 2 cost free).

On the European school, he informed that the European Court of Auditors (ECA) in
its recent report identified that the European school in Slovenia has not yet been
established. The establishment of the European school was envisaged in the Seat
Agreement between ACER and the Government of Slovenia, which entered into
force in January 2011. The Slovenian government recently informed the Agency that
a bill recognising international schools, is being discussed in its National Assembly.
Furthermore, the Ministry of Education, Science and Sport of Slovenia launched a
feasibility study for the establishment of an Accredited European School in Ljubljana,
and that the school is planned to start with an English and Slovene language
sections. Finally, Mr Kari Kivinen, Secretary General of the European Schools, visited
Ljubljana on 30 May 2016 upon invitation of the Ministry of Education, Science and
Sport. He also held meetings with ACER management, and ACER staff, where
experts from the Ministry of Education, Science and Sport were also present. Mr
Kivinen underlined that if everyone is working at full speed, the earliest opportunity
for the start of the European school in Ljubljana would be the school year 2018/2019.

The correction coefficient for Slovenia is currently down to 81,2%. To marginally
compensate the unrealistic correction coefficient for Slovenia, the Agency is adopting
social measures (in line with the Staff Regulations), such as paying for transport or
providing free parking at TR3.

On the regulatory front, the adoption of network codes and guidelines is progressing
well. The Network Code on Electricity System Operation was voted in comitology on
4 May 2016. In Gas, the only network code that ACER was unable to recommend for
adoption was the one on Harmonised Transmission Tariffs Rules, which is now being
dealt with by the Commission. The first comitology meetings are scheduled to take
place end of June.

A number of Opinions were issued since the last AB meeting by the Agency on other
regulatory activities in electricity: ENTSO-E Work Programme 2015-16 and SR 2015,
ENTSO-E Network Operation Tools Report, ENTSO-E Recommendations on
Cooperation EU and third-country TSOs, and National Ten-Year Network
Development Plans.

The Board was informed that this year's Market Monitoring Report for 2015 is going
to comprise a main report (which is going to be printed for wider distribution), and 4
technical reports covering key insights and recommendations for Wholesale
electricity, Wholesale Gas, Retail Markets, and Consumer Protection.

The Board was informed about the appeals related to the Peer Review Opinion (on
XBCM in the CEE Region). Cases A-001-2015 and A-002-2015 were both dismissed
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as inadmissible by the Board of Appeal. Cases T-671/15 against Opinion 09/2015
and T-63/16 against the ACER Board of Appeal decision are ongoing before the
General Court.

On Third Countries’ Participation in ACER, he informed the members, while the
formal participation in the BoR will be decided by the Commission, involvement at
technical level can be granted by the Agency and governed by an MoU defining
respective commitments and responsibilities. EICom (Switzerland) has already joined
the AEWG on 16 January. NVE (Norway) joined all AWGs and REMIT Contact Group
on 3 June. For the Energy Community Contracting Parties, the Agency will rely on
the Energy Community Secretariat's assessment of their imminent compliance with
the requirements of Article 31 of the ACER Regulation to invite the respective NRAs
to join the Agency’s Working Groups.

The Members were informed about the 5th Annual Conference that was going to take
place on 16 June in Ljubljana. The theme of the conference was going to be ‘ACER:
Past, Present & Future'. It will focus on how the Agency has performed in its first 5
years and on its future role.

Also, the Board was updated on recent contacts with the EP. An ITRE Committee
delegation visited ACER on 11 February 2016 and had an exchange of views on the
latest developments in the Agency’s work towards a single, well-functioning and
transparent energy market in Europe.

The ITRE Committee ACER Contact Group took place in Brussels on 4 April. It was
chaired by MEP Claude Turmes (assistants from all political groups were present).

On REMIT, he emphasised that the second phase of data reporting started smoothly
on 7 April without any major problem. The REMIT Reporting User Package was
updated. By mid-May, 10356 market participants were registered, 100 Registered
Reporting Mechanisms (RRMs) were approved, while 1293 RRM applications were
still in the process (the REMIT fiche financiére envisaged approximately 200 RRMs in
total). Due to resources constraints the Agency’s RRM Registration/testing team is
not able to deal with more than 5-10 applicants a month and to support so many
RRMs. The Agency therefore prioritised the registration of third-party RRMs, to
ensure “operational reliability” (Article 12(1) REMIT), until a permanent solution is
found (likely to include fees).

The monitoring at the Agency level is not taking place, as the Agency is still checking
the quality of the reported data and due to the lack of resources, but monitoring is
taking place at NRAs level.

On staffing requirements, the Agency has so far been able to devote only 26 staff
members for the implementation of REMIT: 15 posts were assigned in the REMIT
fiche financiére and an additional 11 were dedicated to REMIT implementation in
2016 out of the 15 additional posts authorised for this year. A new department was
going to be established in 2016.

He presented the case statistics. 13 cases of potential breach of REMIT were
received this year and 11 were closed, there are currently 54 ongoing cases in total.
Most identified cases are related to potential market abuse and insider trading.
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Finally, on infrastructure package, the 2" PCI monitoring report was expected on 30
June 2016.

Lord Mogg reported on the BoR Summit, which took place in September 2015 and
resulted in ACER Recommendation No 1/2016 of 30 May 2016 on ensuring the
independence of the Agency and of the NRAs. The Recommendation is calling for
adequate resourcing of the Agency to safeguard its independence, the need to
ensure NRAs' legal and institutional independence, as well as recommending that
NRAs are accountable to national parliaments- as opposed to their governments.
He underlined that despite resource constraints, all NRAs — including the smallest -
commit considerable resources to cooperation with ACER (200 FTEs), with a
disproportionate strain on the small and medium-sized NRAs.

One AB member asked which activities were particularly affected by the lack of
resources. The Director replied that the Agency estimates it needs 45 staff to run
REMIT effectively. So far it has been given 26 staff. Therefore 19 out of the 33
additional resources requested for 2017 would be allocated to REMIT. 6 to
infrastructure, 4 to the implementation of the network codes, and 4 to horizontal
support. There has been some internal redeployment because the drafting of the
network codes has finished, however those were limited due to the need for the
monitoring of their implementation.

Another AB member asked about other challenges regarding the implementation of
REMIT. The Director replied that these are the quality of the data received.

On a question regarding the developments of relations with FERC, the Director
replied that the Agency is in excellent relationship with FERC. It is currently hosting
two FERC experts. The exchange of staff in the direction Ljubljana - Washington is
currently not possible due to the limited resources on ACER side.

Lord Mogg informed about developments in the Energy Regulators Forum which is
tasked with promoting agreements for the all-NRA decisions envisaged in the CACM
GL. He also stressed the erosion of NRA resources. He is hoping the Commission
could address this issue. He also informed about the CEER training arrangements
and presented different funding options for the future.

5. Budgetary developments 2017

The Director reiterated that the AB adopted the ACER budget estimate, with
associated staff numbers, back in January 2016. The budget estimate was supported
by the BoR. The European Commission is still to publish its draft EU Budget for
2017. However, the first indications suggest that the Commission will propose a
decrease of one temporary agent post.

He reminded the Board about the visit of FERC Chairman Bay to the EU Council in
the autumn 2015, where he indicated the required resources for an equivalent market
monitoring exercise at FERC. The Director said that the Agency's quest for
resources is not his personal quest, but underlined that it would be detrimental to
Europe if an incident of a major fraud would go undetected. Therefore, striving for
sufficient resources should be a joint effort.
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The Chair highlighted that the lack of sufficient resources is really alarming,
especially as the Energy Union is one of the flagship projects of the Junker's
Commission. The issue of reputation is also to be underlined. She called for a
collective synergic action plan and asked the Director to prepare it.

Mr Kazmierczak, Commission appointed AB member, confirmed that there is a risk
that the implementation of REMIT will not be effective. One AB member suggested
that the situation should be upgraded from a “risk” (manageable) to a “problem” (not
manageable).

An AB member raised the issue of the difficulty of the Agency’s to plan its IT budget,
and the Director concurred, emphasising that the IT planning depends heavily on the
changes on the market. Lord Mogg, the BoR Chair, asked whether the fees could
solve the gap in IT financing. The Director replied that if the Agency were to receive
additional €20 million in fees, its budgetary needs would be fully covered.

Conclusion: The AB underlined that there is a risk and a problem regarding the lack
of human resources at the Agency. The AB asked the Director to prepare an action

plan on how to address this issue with the EU policy-makers.

6. 2016 AB Decisions, by delegation of the Administrative Board to the
Chairman via Decision AB 05bis/ 2010 of 21 September 2010

The Chair reported that she made 4 appointment decisions since the last meeting,
whereby she formally appointed 3 members (from Latvian, Portuguese and Austrian
NRAs) and 2 alternate members (from Portuguese and Czech NRAs). The agenda
item 18 was further addressing the appointments.

Conclusion: The AB took note of the Chairs report on her BoR member
appointments.

7. Annual Activity Report for 2015

The Director said that as in previous years, the Agency prepared the Annual Activity
Report for its activities in 2015. The regulatory part, the independent section of the
Annual Activity Report, was approved by the BoR through electronic voting on 25
May. On 27 May the Annual Activity report was circulated to the AB for adoption. On
2 June ACER received some technical comments that were incorporated in the text
to be adopted by the AB. The Director said that this year there has been an
inversion of the AB and the BoR meetings, which resulted in a slight delay in the
circulation of the report to the AB members. Consequently, the Commission’s
comments were received a week before the AB meeting and the updated document
was only circulated to the AB members the night before, leaving the Members little
time to read it.

Conclusion: The Chair declared the urgency and that a written procedure in line with
Article 9 of the Rules of procedure would be launched to adopt the report.
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FoIIowmg the adoption of the Report and in line with Article 13(12) of the Agency’s
Founding Regulation, the AB will publish it and transmit it to the European
Parliament, the Council, the Commission, the Court of Auditors, the European
Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions by 15 June.

The AB discussed its assessment of the report.

Ms Kazmierczak, the AB member appointed by the Commission, wanted to avoid
mentioning 'inadequate resources' too many times, and keeping one reference only,
as well as proposed some language underlining the under-execution of payment
appropriations.

Another AB member suggested to include a statement that “the Report correctly
identified the challenges faced by the Agency in the completion of the internal energy
market, including delivering the benefits to EU energy consumers”.

The Administrative Board agreed to include the proposed changes.

Conclusion: The AB approved the assessment of the Annual Activity Report, subject
to the incorporation of the requested changes.

8. AB Decision on appointment of two members as reporting officers for
assessment of the annual performance of the Director

The Chair said that the Director of the Agency is subject to an annual appraisal
exercise. The Administrative Board has to appoint two reporting officers to assess
the annual performance of the Director, of which one has to be a representative of
the European Commission, for the reference period of 1 January 2015 to 31
December 2015. Mr Klaus-Dieter Borchardt (from the Commission) and Mr Jochen
Penker (Vice-Chair) were proposed for appointment as reporting officers, and Dr
Romana Jordan (Chair) as appeal assessor.

Conclusion: The AB adopted the decision on appointment of two members as

reporting officers for assessment of the annual performance of the Director (ANNEX
1.

9. Discharge 2014

The Director reported that on 28 April the EP voted in plenary session on the
Agencies’ 2014 discharge. This included separate votes: one on the performance,
financial management and control of EU Agencies as a whole (the so-called
horizontal discharge) and a specific vote on each Agency. The ACER’s discharge
was supported by 515 MEPs, 112 voted against and 17 abstained.
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The numbers were in line with those of other Agencies. The EP noted that the
Agency has taken corrective action as a follow-up to the 2013 discharge (high cash
balance at the end of the year and application of a Conflict of Interest Policy),
including the publication of declarations of interest and CVs of management and
board members.

On the budget, the EP noted that the Agency reached the 95% implementation rate
target but did not reach the 75% payment execution rate, mainly due to the renewal
or renegotiation of the Agency’s annual contracts towards the end of the year, as well
as the multiannual nature of the implementation of REMIT. The EP also noted that
the relatively high committed appropriations and carry overs, although lower than in
the previous year, were mainly due to the complex multi-annual nature of REMIT and
to the need to partly suspend the implementation of REMIT due to the late adoption
of the REMIT Implementing Acts. The EP nevertheless called upon the Agency to
reduce the high carry-overs and to continue improving the planning and
implementation of its budget.

The EP welcomed the Agency’s improvements in procurement and recruitment
procedures (e.g. the strict anonymity of candidates) and the fact that the Agency’s
Internal Control Standards were adequate. It also noted that 10 out of 11
recommendations issued by the Internal Audit Service in 2013 were closed and one
was to be completed in 2015. The EP noted that the Key Performance Indicators
system of the Agency had been reviewed (introducing a distinction between KPIs and
performance indicators). The Agency was also called to include a standard chapter
on the Annual Activity report on conflict of interest issues. Finally, the EP regretted
the fact that despite the Agency’s Seat Agreement no European school had been set
up in Slovenia.

The horizontal discharge (applicable to all EU decentralised agencies) focused on
the need to further implement the Common Approach and the Commission’s
Roadmap for agencies. It also urged agencies to avoid a high level of cancellations
and carry-overs, stressed the need for agencies to cooperate, and touched upon HR
issues, conflicts of interest and transparency.

The EP reiterated that the agencies should ensure that citizens are well informed of
the results of the Agencies’ activities. It also requested the Court of Auditors to
provide an evaluation of the agencies’ performance and results in time for the review
of the 2016 Multiannual Financial Framework. The EP also wants the agencies to
become more visible, to improve their communication policies and to increase their
presence on social media.

The EP also reminded the Court of Auditors that outsourced external audits remain
under the full responsibility of the Court and regretted the fact that the new audit
approach involving private sector auditors resulted in a considerable increase in the
administrative burden for the agencies.

Furthermore, the EP took note of the fact that most agencies have already met or
exceeded the 5% staff reduction by 2017 foreseen in a 2013 interinstitutional
agreement and noted also that the Commission applied an additional levy of 5% of
staff to the agencies to create a redeployment pool for posts in agencies with new
tasks.
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Finally, the EP called upon the Commission to run a SWOT analysis on the agencies

to come to an informed decision on which agencies need more staff and which do
not.

The Chair concluded that the EP discharge report is positive for ACER and
congratulated the Director. She also underlined that the EP has asked the
Commission to carry out a SWOT analysis on the agencies and asked about the
Commission’s timeline for this exercise, underlining its high importance for ACER.

The Commission appointed AB member replied that DG BUDG is in the lead for the
referred SWOT analysis on the EU decentralised agencies. She agreed about the
importance of this exercise for ACER and promised to update the AB on any results.
She also underlined that the level of carry-over was too high and resulted in higher
than 5 percent cancellation of payment appropriations. The Agency was thus
penalised for 2% percent of its 2017 budget. She called upon the Agency to monitor
properly the expenditure of carry-overs, presumably in the form of a KPI.

The Director admitted that the Agency could improve its budget spending, but also
highlighted that the principle of annuality, the incertitute of the budget and the
multiannuality of REMIT operations all had an impact.

The Commission appointed AB member indicted that a distinction should be made
between a healthy carry-over (a common phenomenon) and an unhealthy carry-over
(a better monitoring of the payment at the Agency), the latter requiring an active
approach (asking for invoices in time etc). The Admin department of ACER should
take this into account.

Conclusion: The Board took note of the 2014 Discharge report.

10. MoU with third countries

The Director updated the members about the MoUs with third parties: Third
countries participation in the Agency is governed by Article 31 of the ACER
Regulation, which states that “The Agency shall be open to the participation of third
countries which have concluded agreements with the [Union] whereby they have
adopted and are applying Community law in the field of energy and, if relevant, in
the fields of environment and competition”. Following the exchange of letter with the
Commission in 2015 it has been decided that the Participation of Third Countries’
NRAs in:

- the BoR will be decided by the Commission, on the basis of an assessment of
Third Party’s compliance with the requirements of Aricle 31 of the ACER
Regulation;

- the AWGs will be decided by the Agency, on the basis of an assessment of the
Third Party’s imminent compliance with the requirements of Article 31 of the ACER
Regulation.
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The participation of Third Countries’ NRAs in AWGs is based on a MoU, defining
respective commitments and responsibilities. Two MoUs with third countries have
already been concluded: one with Norway and one with Switzerland.

For Energy Community (EnC) Contracting Parties, the Agency will rely on the
Energy Community Secretariat's assessment of their imminent compliance with the
requirements of Article 31 of the ACER Regulation to invite the respective NRAs to
join the Agency’s Working Groups.

The forthcoming MoU with the EnC will enable the EnC to join AEWG, AGWG and
AIMPWG.

The Commission appointed AB member commented that the Commission is of the
opinion that the MoU’s are usually concluded between entitites having legal
personality, however the EnC is not a legal entity. Therefore the Commission is
suggesting to downgrade the MoU between ACER and the EnC to a technical
administrative arrangement.

The Director underlined that in case of MoU downgrading, there is a need to clarify
confindentiality issues.

Conclusion: The Board took note of the information provided by the Director.
11. Declarations of Interest

The Chair informed the Members about the letter she received from the BoR Chair
Lord Mogg, informing her about the BoR Review Panel and the completion of the Col
exercise for the BoR on 15 March. The Chair was equally informed about the
completion of the 2016 Col exercise of the Board of Appeal, which held its Review
Panel on 8 February. As for the AB, the Chair notified the Board that all declarations
of interest of AB members were received and are published on the internet without
signatures. The AB Col Review Panel was going to take place immediately after the
AB meeting. The Chair will report of the results at the September AB meeting.

Conclusion: The Board took note of the information from the Chair and will revert to
this point back in September.

12. Proposal for a financial compensation to AB members

The Commission appointed AB member reported on her undertaking to follow up on
a plea from Mr Nicolescu, the former AB Chair, to financially compensate AB
members for their participation and active involvement in the Administrative Board.

She said that the Commission internally assessed the legal possibility for such
compensation. Unfortunately, they could not find any legal possibility for it, except if
the Agency’s Founding Regulation was changed. However, she warned about the
opening of the Agency’s Founding Regulation, as it could also result in other less
positive changes. The Commission will now check with the other EU institutions,
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whether they could financially compensate their AB appointed members via their
Rules of Procedure.

She promised to report back at the September AB meeting.

The Chair underlined that in this context ad personam appointments are different
than appointments from seconding institutions.

Lord Mogg, the BoR representative, agreed and said that a similar financial
compensation should be envisaged for the Board of Appeal members.

The Director proposed to find a technical solution for both the AB and the BoA.

Conclusion: The Board asked the Director and the Commission to explore a technical

solution on the financial compensation of the AB and BoA members and report back
at its next meeting.

13. Appointment of the new Board of Appeal members

The Chair recalled that Article 18 of Regulation (EC) No 713/2009 stipulates that the
AB shall appoint members and alternates of the Board of Appeal, on the basis of a
proposal from the Commission following a public expression of interest; and after
consultation of the BoR. The Commission published a call of expression of interest
on 19 January 2016 and prolonged the initial deadline from 11 March until 22 Mars
2016. On 30 May the Chair received the Commission’s proposal, which was
circulated to Members. The proposal was also circulated to the BoR for opinion. The
Board will need to appoint the new BoA members and alternates by 22 September
because the current mandate of the BoA expires on that day.

The Commission reported on their selection procedure. They received 19 candidates
for the position of member and alternate of the BoA. The selection committee was set
up and they established the Panel. They tried to make a balanced proposal.

The AB and the BoR Chair asked the Commission to circulate the entire list of
applications to both Boards, which was accepted.

Conclusion: The Board asked the Commission to provide information on the entire
list of BoA applications. The Chair declared the urgency for the appointment of the
new Board of Appeal members, so that a written procedure could be launched when
the BoR provides its Opinion.

14. AB opinion on the 2015 Annual Accounts of ACER

The Director reported that on 19 April 2016, the European Court of Auditors (ECA)
issued its preliminary observations with a view to report on the annual accounts of
the Agency for the financial year 2015. On 13 May 2016, the Director submitted to
the AB the final accounts of the Agency for the financial year 2015. ECA’s main
comment was a high level of carry-overs (Title lll), which were due to REMIT
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complex operations of multi-annual nature, and the outstanding status of its 2014
recommendation on the set-up of the European School.

Conclusion: The Administrative Board adopted its opinion on the final accounts of the
Agency as drawn up by the Director in accordance with Article 24(4) and (5) of the
founding Requlation (ANNEX 2).

15. Permission to the Director for an outside activity

The Chair informed the Board about two requests for carry out an outside activity
from the Director. The Director asked for permission regarding his membership in the
CEER’s Training Academy Advisory Board, and about writing a Chapter in a
forthcoming book marking the 20th anniversary of the establishment of the ltalian
NRA.

The Chair asked for the Commission’s opinion about these two requests. The
Commission appointed AB member said that the Commission does not see any issue
with the request for writing a Chapter in a forthcoming book marking the 20th
anniversary of the establishment of the ltalian NRA, underlining that a standard
disclaimer (person opinion only) should be used.

The Vice- Chair asked for a translation of the article.

The Commission however had concerns regarding the Director’s attendance of the
CEER Advisory Board, given that in December 2015 the Board granted the Director
permission to engage in academic cooperation with the Florence School of
Regulation at the European University Institute for the year 2016 for exceptional 200
working hours. The Commission was not ready to grant the Director a further
extension of this ceiling, however they would not be against using some of those 200
working hours for the CEER Advisory Board.

Conclusion: The Board took note of the intention of the Director to write a Chapter in
a forthcoming book marking the 20th anniversary of the establishment of the ltalian
NRA. However, the Board was of the opinion that the exceptional ceilings granted in
AB Decision 24-2015 on the permission to the Director to engage in academic
cooperation with the FSR in 2016 should not be extended further.

16. Commission Decision C(2015)9720 on Article 55a of the Staff
Regulations and Annex IVa thereto concerning part-time work by analogy
(in application of Article 110(2) of the Staff Regulations

The Director informed the Members about the new Commission Decision on working
time, containing provisions which affect the rules related to part-time work. The new
provisions contain amendments to the Commission Decision of 16 December 2013
on part-time work [C(2013) 9046], which the Agency adopted by analogy, and has
been implementing as of 1 October 2014.

He presented the main changes with regard to the old Commission decision: Greater
flexibility was introduced in part-time arrangements regarding the launching of the
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Fit@work initiative; Part-time work may also be authorised in the form of time credits
— this enabled the introduction of a new provision allowing staff benefiting from this
arrangement to use days or half-days acquired over a period of 12 months; an option
of working on a 95 % part-time basis without applying the pro-rata calculation of the
remuneration has been introduced; some changes were introduced in the working
time decision (i.e. — rest brake can take 20 instead of 30 min, etc.).

To that end, in line with the Guidelines on the implementation of Art. 110 of the Staff
Regulations, the Director proposed that the Board adopts a decision to apply the new
Commission decision on part- time work, which will replace the previous decision on
the matter, by analogy.

Conclusion: The Board adopted the Decision on the application by analogy of the
new Commission decision C(2015)9720 on Article 55a of the Staff Requlations and
Annex IVa thereto concerning part-time work, which will replace the previous
decision on the matter (ANNEX 3).

17. State of play of Implementing Rules (IR)

The Director reported on progress and the state of play of the adoption of
Implementing Rules (IR) to the Staff Regulations since the last AB meeting in
January.

Following the agreement of the Board, the Agency submitted, on 4 February 2016, a
request for derogation from the application by analogy of Commission Decision
C(2015) 9151 of 17.12.2015 on the implementation of telework in Commission
Departments.

In addition, the following model decisions were adopted by the Administrative Board
on 4 April 2016 by written procedure:

- Model decision on the reclassification of temporary staff
- Model decision on the reclassification of contract staff
- Model decision on working time

The Director asked this item to become a standing item on the agenda of the AB as
necessary.

Conclusion: The Board agreed that the State of Play of Implementing Rules becomes
a standing item on the agenda of the AB as necessary.

18. AB Delegation to the Chair for the appointment of the BoR members

The Chair said that she wanted to raise awareness about the AB Decision 5bis-2010
from 21 September 2010 on delegation to the Chair of the power to appoint new
members of the BoR and asked the Board whether they are happy with this
delegation to the Chair.
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Conclusion: The Board confirmed that they are happy with the current practice and
with the delegation to the Chair.

AOB Building file

The Director reported that, as the Agency is recruiting the 15 additional temporary
agent posts authorised for 2016, is expanding its traineeship programme and is
organising an increasing number of meetings, it needs to acquire additional office
space. For these reasons ACER is in contact with the landlord of the TR3 building to
explore options of the Agency’s space expansion.

He admitted that the Agency initially misinterpreted provisions in the Framework
Financial Regulation (FFR) related to the need to submit a building file to the
budgetary authorities. The building file (the detailed dossier on the expansion of the
office premises) was submitted on 17 May 2016 to DG ENER and DG BUDG for
review and approval. In the meantime it has become clear that the building file does
not need to be submitted to the Budgetary Authorities, as it is below the threshold
established in Art. 88 of the Framework Financial Regulation (FFR).

The Commission representative said they were surprised about the handling of this
file, especially that ACER sent a notification of the building project to the Parliament
and Council without awaiting the Commission's feedback (and without giving the
Commission sufficient time to provide such a feedback). She called for close
coordination of the Agency’s Administration department with the Commission’s SRD
service in the future. Moreover, she asked for a clarification of the number of staff
at the Agency as, based on ACER's authorised posts, it seemed that ACER had
sufficient office space. It appeared that ACER had been recruiting contract agents
above the number recognised by the Commission, and as such the justification for
the additional space may not be supported by the Commission, as the current office
space appears to be sufficient for the authorised staff. She also requested further
clarifications as to the number of additional parking spaces requested.

The Director confirmed that the Agency has been using project-based contract
agents beyond the number recognised by the Commission to overcome the severe
shortage of staff, in an attempt to preserve its ability to deliver on its legislative
mandate. The Agency would like to use the opportunity to expand when floors
become available at TR3. Finally, ACER provides a parking space to every staff
member that needs it as a social measure, as part of its attempt to be an attractive
employer and, at least partially, to compensate for the unrealistic decrease of the
correction coefficient.

Conclusion: The Board decided to discuss in detail the building file at its next
meeting in September.

/\r n 1/
Dr Romana Jordan X
Chair of the Administrqtive Board of ACER
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ANNEX 1

DECISION AB n° 11/2016

OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE BOARD OF THE AGENCY FOR THE
COOPERATION OF ENERGY REGULATORS

of 7 June 2016

on the appointment of two members as reporting officers and an appeal assessor for the
assessment of the annual performance of the Director

THE ADMINISTRATIVE BOARD OF THE AGENCY FOR THE COOPERATION OF
ENERGY REGULATORS,

Having regard to the Staff Regulations of Officials of the European Communities (Staff
Regulations) and the Conditions of Employment of Other Servants of the European
Communities (CEOS), laid down by Council Regulation (EEC, EURATOM, ECSC)
n° 259/68!, and, in particular, Article 43 of the Staff Regulations and Article 15(2) of CEOS,

Having regard to Decision AB n° 26/2011 of the Administrative Board of the Agency for the
Cooperation of Energy Regulators of 22 September 2011 concerning the appraisal of the
Director of the Agency for the Cooperation of Energy Regulators, and, in particular, Article 3
thereof,

Having regard to Decision AB n° 10/2015 of the Administrative Board of the Agency for the
Cooperation of Energy Regulators of 8 July 2015 on the reappointment of the Director of the
Agency for the Cooperation of Energy Regulators,

Whereas:

(1) Pursuant to Article 1 of Decision AB n° 26/2011 of the Administrative Board of the
Agency for the Cooperation of Energy Regulators of 22 September 2011, the Director
of the Agency is subject to an annual appraisal exercise.

) The Administrative Board has to appoint two reporting officers to assess the annual
performance of the Director, of which one has to be a representative of the European
Commission.

(3)  Further to Decision AB n° 25/2012 of the Administrative Board of the Agency for the
Cooperation of Energy Regulators of 5 December 2012 appointing two members as
reporting officers for the assessment of the annual performance of the Director, and

1 OJ L56, 4.3.1968, p. 1.



ACER

Agency for the Cooperation
of Encrgy Regulators

taking into account Article 1(3) of Decision AB n” 26/2011 of 22 September 2011,
two reporting officers were appointed to establish an annual performance appraisal
report for the Director of the Agency for the reference period of 17 March 2011 to

31 December 2012. Subsequently, no appraisal exercise was undertaken for the year
2013, therefore, in accordance with Decision AB n° 03/2015, the annual performance
appraisal report of the Director exceptionally covered the reference period of

1 January 2013 to 31 December 2014.

HAS ADOPTED THIS DECISION:

Article 1

Mr Klaus-Dieter Borchardt and Mr Jochen Penker are appointed as reporting officers, and Dr
Romana Jordan as appeal assessor, for the annual appraisal of the Director for the reference
period of 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015.

Article 2

This decision shall enter into force on the day of its adoption.

Done at Ljubljana on 7 June 2016.

For the Administrative Board:

Dr. Romana Jordan
Chairwoman of the Administrative Board
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ANNEX 2

OPINION AB 01/2016
OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE BOARD
OF THE AGENCY FOR THE COOPERATION OF ENERGY REGULATORS
of 7 June 2016

on the approval of the final accounts for the financial year 2015

THE ADMINISTRATIVE BOARD OF THE AGENCY FOR THE COOPERATION OF
ENERGY REGULATORS,

Having regard to Regulation (EC) No 713/2009 of the European Parliament and of the
Council of 13 July 2009 establishing an Agency for the Cooperation of Energy Regulators?,
and, in particular, Article 24(5) thereof,

Having regard to Decision AB No 22/2013 of the Administrative Board of the Agency for the
Cooperation of Energy Regulators of 12 December 2013 on the adoption of the Financial
Regulation of the Agency for the Cooperation of Energy Regulators, and, in particular, Article
99(2) and (3) thereof,

Whereas:

(1) On 19 April 2016, the European Court of Auditors issued its preliminary
observations with a view to report on the annual accounts of the Agency for
the Cooperation of Energy Regulators (hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”)
for the financial year 2015.

(2) On 13 May 2016, the Director submitted to the Administrative Board the final
accounts of the Agency for the financial year 2015.

HAS ADOPTED THIS OPINION:

Article 1

The Administrative Board takes note of the preliminary observations of the European Court of
Auditors on the annual accounts of the Agency for the financial year 2015, attached as Annex
I to this Opinion.

Article 2

The Administrative Board hereby endorses the final accounts of the Agency for the financial
year 2015, attached as Annex II to this Opinion.

Article 3

20JL211, 14.8.2009, p.1.
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The Administrative Board invites the Director to take immediate actions to address the
comments made by the Court of Auditors in its preliminary observations, where relevant, and
to report, in due course, on the actions taken.

Article 4

This Opinion shall be communicated, together with the final accounts, to the accounting
officer of the Commission, the Court of Auditors, the European Parliament, and the Council
by 1 July 2016.

Done at Ljubljana, on 7 June 2016.
For the Administrative Board:

Dr. Romana Jordan
Chair of the Administrative Board
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Preliminary observations

with a view to a report on the annual accounts
of the Agency for the Cooperation of Energy Regulators
for the financial year 2015

These preliminary observations were adopted by Chamber IV at its meeting of 19 April 2016.
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INTRODUCTION

The Agency for the Cooperation of Energy Regulators (hereinafter “the Agency”,
aka “ACER”), which is located in Ljubljana, was created by Regulation (EC)

No 713/2009 of the European Parliament and of the Council®. The Agency's main
task is to assist National Regulatory Authorities in exercising, at Union level, the
regulatory tasks that they perform in the Member States and, where necessary, to
coordinate their action. Under the REMIT regulation*, the Agency was given
additional responsibilities, together with national regulatory authorities, regarding the

monitoring of the European wholesale energy market.
[Table 1 presents key figures for the Agency®.

TABLE 1: KEY FIGURES FOR THE AGENCY

2014 2015
Budget (million euro) 10,9 11,3
Total staff as at 31 December® 72 80

Source: data provided by the Agency.]
INFORMATION IN SUPPORT OF THE STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE

The audit approach taken by the Court comprises analytical audit procedures, direct
testing of transactions and an assessment of key controls of the Agency’s
supervisory and control systems. This is supplemented by evidence provided by the
work of other auditors and an analysis of management representations.

STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE

Pursuant to the provisions of Article 287 of the Treaty on the Functioning of the European
Union (TFEU), the Court has audited:

a) the annual accounts of the Agency, which comprise the financial statements’ and the
reports on the implementation of the budget® for the financial year ended
31 December 2015, and

8 0OJ L 211, 14.8.2009, p. 1.

4 Regulation No 1227/2011 of the European Parliament and of the Council (OJ L 326, 8.12.2011, p. 1),
which assigns an important role to the Agency in supervising trading in wholesale energy markets across Europe.
N More information on the Agency’s competences and activities is available on its website:
WWw\Wv.acer.europa.eu.]

[¢ Staff includes officials, temporary and contract staff and seconded national experts.]

2.1-AB-27-2016_ final draft of 26th meeting of the AB (20160607)- Com comments included19.4.2016
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b) the legality and regularity of the transactions underlying those accounts.
The management’s responsibility

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the annual

accounts of the Agency and the legality and regularity of the underlying transactions®:

c) The management’s responsibilities in respect of the Agency's annual accounts include
designing, implementing and maintaining an internal control system relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies on the basis of the accounting rules adopted by the Commission’s
accounting officer'?; making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances. The Director approves the annual accounts of the Agency after its
accounting officer has prepared them on the basis of all available information and
established a note to accompany the accounts in which he declares, inter alia, that he
has reasonable assurance that they present a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Agency in all material respects.

d) The management’s responsibilities in respect of the legality and regularity of the
underlying transactions and compliance with the principle of sound financial
management consist of designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and
efficient internal control system comprising adequate supervision and appropriate
measures to prevent irregularities and fraud and, if necessary, legal proceedings to

recover funds wrongly paid or used.
The auditor’s responsibility

The Court’s responsibility is, on the basis of its audit, to provide the European Parliament
and the Council'* with a statement of assurance as to the reliability of the annual accounts
and the legality and regularity of the underlying transactions. The Court conducts its audit in

accordance with the IFAC International Standards on Auditing and Codes of Ethics and the

7 These include the balance sheet and the statement of financial performance, the cash flow table, the

statement of changes in net assets and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.
8 These comprise the budgetary outturn account and the annex to the budgetary outturn account.

9 Acrticles 39 and 50 of Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 1271/2013 (OJ L 328, 7.12.2013,
p. 42).
10 The accounting rules adopted by the Commission’s accounting officer are derived from the
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) issued by the International Federation of Accountants
or, where relevant, the International Accounting Standards (IAS)/International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

1 Article 107 of Regulation (EU) No 1271/2013.

2.1-AB-27-2016_ final draft of 26th meeting of the AB (20160607)- Com comments included19.4.2016
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INTOSAI International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions. These standards require the
Court to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the annual
accounts of the Agency are free from material misstatement and the transactions underlying
them are legal and regular.

The audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the accounts and the legality and regularity of the underlying transactions. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, which is based on an assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the accounts and material non-compliance by the
underlying transactions with the requirements in the legal framework of the European Union,
whether due to fraud or error. In assessing these risks, the auditor considers any internal
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the accounts, as well as the
supervisory and control systems that are implemented to ensure the legality and regularity of
underlying transactions, and designs audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. The audit also entails evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies,
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and the overall presentation of the accounts. In
preparing this report and Statement of Assurance, the Court considered the audit work of the
independent external auditor performed on the Agency’s accounts as stipulated in

Article 208(4) of the EU Financial Regulation*?.

The Court considers that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for its statement of assurance.

Opinion on the reliability of the accounts
In the Court’s opinion, the Agency’s annual accounts present fairly, in all material respects,

its financial position as at 31 December 2015 and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the provisions of its Financial Regulation

and the accounting rules adopted by the Commission’s accounting officer.

Opinion on the legality and regularity of the transactions underlying the accounts
In the Court’s opinion, the transactions underlying the annual accounts for the year ended

31 December 2015 are legal and regular in all material respects.

[Other matter
Without calling into question the opinion expressed in paragraph 9, the Court draws attention

to the fact that the annual accounts of the Agency were verified by an independent external

auditor and that the Court considered the verification results when preparing its own audit

12 Regulation (EU, Euratom) No 966/2012 of the European Parliament and of the Council (OJ L 298,
26.10.2012, p. 1).

2.1-AB-27-2016_ final draft of 26th meeting of the AB (20160607)- Com comments included19.4.2016
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opinion, as stipulated in Article 208(4) of the EU Financial Regulation. Under International
Standards on Auditing, an auditor making use of another auditor’s results is required to
review their reliability. This review work is ongoing and the Court’s opinion on the reliability of

the accounts is subject to confirmation of the reliability of the independent external auditor’s

results.]

The comments which follow do not call the Court’s opinions into question.

COMMENTS ON BUDGETARY MANAGEMENT

The Agency carried over 1,36 million euro, i.e. 59 % of its committed appropriations
for Title 11l operational expenditure (2014: 1,57 million euro, i.e. 62 %). These carry-
overs were mainly related to the implementation of REMIT (1,1 million euro), a
complex operational activity on wholesale energy market integrity and transparency
of a multiannual nature. The Agency also carried over 0,79 million euro, i.e. 35 %
(2014: 0,98 million euro, i.e. 41 %) of committed appropriations for Title Il
administrative expenditure, mainly related to studies and services not yet delivered in
2015.

FOLLOW-UP OF PREVIOUS YEAR’S COMMENTS

An overview of the corrective actions taken in response to the Court's comments

from the previous year is provided in Annex |I.

2.1-AB-27-2016_ final draft of 26th meeting of the AB (20160607)- Com comments included19.4.2016



Follow-up of previous vear’s comments

Annex |

Year

Court’s comment

Status of corrective
action

(Completed / Ongoing /
Outstanding / N/A)

2014

The Agency carried over 1,57 million euro, i.e. 62 %, of
committed appropriations for title 111 operational expenditure
(2013: 3,1 million euro, i.e. 91 %). These carry-overs were
mainly related to the implementation of REMIT, a complex
multi-annual operational activity for which the Implementing
Regulation was only adopted on 17 December 20143, The
Agency also carried over 0,98 million euro, i.e. 41 % (2013:
1,9 million euro, i.e. 56 %), of committed appropriations for
title 11 administrative expenditure, mainly related to studies
for the implementation of REMIT and annual contracts
renewed towards the year end.

N/A

2014

In October 2013, through a budget amendment, the Agency
received an additional 3 million euro in appropriations to
implement REMIT, which it carried over to 2014. However,
according to the Implementing Regulation the REMIT
framework will only become operational in October 2015.
Part of the funds was spent in 2014 on preparation for the
implementation of REMIT. At the end of 2014, the Agency
made two pre-financing payments amounting to 1,56 million
euro for contracts on REMIT-related services to be provided
in the period 2015 to 2017, thereby avoiding an automatic
return to the Commission of the unused funds*. Although
this will allow the Agency to finance its future REMIT-
related activities, this is in contradiction with the budgetary
principle of annuality.

N/A

2014

According to the Seat Agreement between the Agency and
the Slovenian government a European School will be
established in Slovenia. However, more than four years after
the agreement no European School has been set up.

Outstanding

13
14

Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 1348/2014 (OJ L 363, 18.12.2014, p. 121).
Article 13 of the EU Financial Regulation stipulates that amounts can be carried over for one
financial year only.

2.1-AB-27-2016 _ final draft of 26th meeting of the AB (20160607)- Com comments
included 19.4.2016
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CERTIFICATION OF ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

The annual accounts of the Agency for the Cooperation of Energy Regulators (hereinafter
‘the Agency’) for the year 2015 have been prepared in accordance with Title IX of the
Agency's Financial Regulation as well as the accounting rules adopted by the European
Commission's Accounting Officer.

I acknowledge my responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the annual accounts
of the Agency in accordance with Article 50 of the Agency’s Financial Regulation.

I have obtained from the authorising officer, who certified its reliability, all the necessary
information for the production of the accounts that show the Agency's assets and liabilities
and the budgetary implementation.

I hereby certify that based on this information, and on such checks as | deemed necessary
to sign off the accounts, | have a reasonable assurance that the accounts present fairly, in all
material aspects, the financial position, the results of the operations and the cash-flow of the
Agency.

13 April 2016

(signed electronically)
Rodica Mandroc,

Accounting and Budget Officer



ACER

Agency for the Cooperation
of Energy Regulators

INTRODUCTION
LEGAL BASIS

The Agency for the Cooperation of Energy Regulators with seat in Ljubljana (Slovenia) has
been established by Regulation (EC) No 713/2009 of the European Parliament and of the
Council of 13 July 2009 (the “founding Regulation”).

The overall mission of the Agency, according to its founding Regulation, is to assist national
regulatory authorities (NRAs) in exercising, at Union level, the regulatory tasks performed in
the Member States and, where necessary, to coordinate their action.

The Agency's activities are also governed by the following regulations:

- Regulation (EU) No 838/2010 of 23 September 2010 of the European Parliament and
of the Council on Inter-TSO Compensation Mechanism;

- Regulation (EU) No 1227/2011 of 25 October 2011 of the European Parliament and
of the Council on wholesale energy market integrity and transparency;

- Regulation (EU) No 347/2013 of 17 April 2013 of the European Parliament and of the
Council on guidelines for trans-European energy infrastructure and repealing
Decision No 1364/2006/EC and amending Regulation (EC) No 713/2009, (EC) No
714/2009 and (EC) No 715/2009.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

According to the founding Regulation, the Agency's governing bodies on administrative
matters are the Administrative Board and the Director.

The Director of the Agency, Mr Alberto Pototschnig, is, according to Article 17 of the
founding Regulation, responsible for representing the Agency and in charge of its
management.

The Administrative Board, chaired by Ms Romana Jordan, is composed of nine members
with two members appointed by the European Parliament, five members appointed by the
Council and two members appointed by the Commission. Each member has an alternate.

The Administrative Board shall give an opinion on the final accounts of the Agency as drawn
up by the Director in accordance with Article 24(4) and (5) of the founding Regulation.

The Agency's expenditures for 2015 were integrally financed through an annual subsidy
from the general budget of the European Union.

In accordance with Article 43(1) of the Decision AB No. 22/2011 of the Administrative Board
of the Agency for the Cooperation of Energy Regulators of 22 September 2011, Ms Rodica
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Mandroc was appointed on 22 September 2011 as the Accounting and Budget Officer of the
Agency's.

The following accounts together with a report on budgetary and financial management have
been drawn up in accordance with Articles 92 — 99 of Decision AB 22/2013 of the
Administrative Board of the Agency for the Cooperation of Energy Regulators of 12
December 2013 on the adoption of the Financial Regulation of the Agency for the
Cooperation of Energy Regulators (‘the Agency’s Financial Regulation) and Article 24 of the
founding Regulation.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The revenues of the Agency’s mainly comprise the annual subsidy from the general budget
of the Union (€10,513,574.00) and some minor revenues (€1,036.64) recorded during the
year steaming from exchange rate gains.

The Statement of Financial Performance for the year ending 31 December 2015 shows a
result of €1,364,055.55 compared to €580,271.40 at the end of 2014.

The impact on the budgetary result is presented and detailed in the second part of this
annual accounts report.

The following financial statements and notes have been drawn up for the financial year
ending 31 December 2015.

15 AB Decision No. 23/2011 of the Administrative Board of the Agency for the Cooperation of Energy
Regulators of 22 September 2011.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

for the year ending 31 December 2015 Notes
REVENUE 1
European Commission subsidy
Other operating revenue

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATIONAL
EXPENSES 2

Staff expenses
Fixed asset related expenses
Other administrative expenses

Operational expenses
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE AND
OPERATIONAL EXPENSES

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

FINANCIAL OPERATIONS 3

Financial operations expenses
SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) FROM FINANCIAL
ACTIVITIES

ECONOMIC RESULT OF THE YEAR

1 January - 31

December
2015
€

10,513,574.00
1,036.64
10,514,610.64

5,637,264.41
201,703.51
2,529,149.53
882,197.64

9,150,315.09

1,364,295.55

240.00

(240.00)

1,364,055.55

1 January -
31 December
2014
€

10,174,912.15
(219,655.35)
9,955,256.80

4,789,856.17

260,414.54
2,166,182.44
2,158,420.82

9,374,873.97

580,382.83

111.43

(111.43)

580,271.40
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BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

as of 31 December 2015 Note

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets

Plant and equipment

Computer hardware

Furniture and vehicles

Other fixtures and fittings
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Short-term receivables
Current receivables
Sundry receivables
Prepaid expenses and accrued income
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT
ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Economic result of the year
TOTAL EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Current payables
Accrued expenses and deferred income
Accounts payable with consolidated entities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

S

1 January - 31
December 2015
€

5,087,602.90
371,230.39
234.36
189,628.36
71,451.92
109,915.75
5,458,833.29

1,807,204.42
1,687,541.79
37,254.62
183,188.01
2,980,779.39

4,888,763.81

10,347,597.10

1 January - 31
December
2015
€

7,685,416.43
1,364,055.55
9,049,471.98

1,298,125.12
17.78
545,681.34
752,426.00
1,298,125.12

1 January - 31

December
2014
€

2,920,071.47
433,807.13
726.31
200,981.87
64,944.27
167,154.68
3,353,878.60

2,156,703.33
2,042,113.22
70,831.99
43,758.12

3,372,278.26
5,528,981.59

8,882,860.19

1 January - 31

December
2014
€

7,105,145.03
580,271.40
7,685,416.43

1,197,443.76
348.38
488,543.36
708,552.02
1,197,443.76
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TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,347,597.1
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
1 January - 31
December
2015
€
Surplus/(deficit) from operating activities 1,364,295.55
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Adjustments

Amortization (intangible fixed assets) 9.176.26

Depreciation (tangible fixed assets) 192,527.25

(Increase)/decrease in Short term Receivables 248,718.91

(Increase)/decrease in Other Liabilities 57,137.98

Increase/(decrease) in Current payables (330.60)

Lnnciirg::e/(decrease) in Liabilities related to consolidated 43.873.98
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 1,915,399.33
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Purchase of tangible and intangible fixed assets (2,306,658.20)
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (2,306,658.20)
Financing Activities

Financial operations revenues/expenses (240.00)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (240.00)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (391,498.87)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 3,372,278.26
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 2,980,779.39

8,882,860.19

1 January - 31
December
2014
€

580,382.83

9,311.56
251,704.81
(1,358,567.19)
(18,859.15)
348.38

289,568.21
246,110.55

(1,850,048.07)
(1,850,048.07)

(111.43)
(111.43)

(2,096,270.05)
5,468,548.31
3,372,278.26
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

as at 31 December 2015

Opening
Net Assets balance
€
Balance as of 1 January 2015 7,685,416.43
Economic result of the year 0.00
Balance as of 31 December 2015 7,685,416.43

Economic Total Net
result of the Assets
year
€ €

0.00 7,685,416.43
1,364,055.55 1,364,055.55
1,364,055.55 9,049,471.98
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES

The objective of the financial statements in general is to provide users with an overview on
the financial performance, position and cash flow of an entity. For a public entity like the
Agency this objective is more specific as the information contained is used in the decision
making process as well as to demonstrate the accountability of the Agency towards the
resources entrusted to it.

The financial statements for the year 2015 were prepared on the basis of the Commission
Accounting Rules as laid down by the accounting officer of the Commission, applicable to
the specific environment of the European Union and which are based on the International
Public Sector Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards. The
financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis whereas the reports on the
implementation of the budget are prepared on a cash basis. Reconciliation between the two
methods is presented in the second part of this annual accounts report.

The accounting system of the Agency contains general and budget accounts with the
functional currency being Euro. The budget accounts provide a detailed picture on the
implementation of the budget and are based on cash accounting principles. The general
accounts prepared on an accrual accounting basis present the financial performance and
position of the Agency as at the end of the financial year.

CURRENCY AND BASIS FOR CONVERSION
Functional and reporting currency

The functional and reporting currency used in the preparation of the financial statements for
the Agency is Euro.

Transactions

Foreign currency transactions were converted into euro in accordance with Article 6 of the
Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 1268/2012 of 29 October 2012 on the rules of
application of Regulation (EU, Euratom) No 966/2012 of the European Parliament and of the
Council on the financial rules applicable to the general budget of the Union'® using the
official Commission exchange rates of the day on which the payment order was drawn up.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions in foreign
currency are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

CHART OF ACCOUNTS

The chart of accounts used by the Agency follows the structure of the chart of accounts used
by the Commission (PCUE).

160J L 362,31/12/2012,p 1.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE - NOTES

1. Revenue
The revenues of the Agency for the financial year 2015 consist of:

- the subsidy received from the general budget of the Union, and
- foreign exchange realised gains.
31 December 2015 31 December 2014

€ €
European Commission subsidy 10,513,574.00 10,174,912.15
Fixed assets income 0.00 411.62
Exchange rate gains 1,036.64 274.95
Other operating revenue 0.00 (220,341.92)
10,514,610.64 9,955,256.80

2. Expenses
Staff expenses consist of personnel-related expenses such as salaries, allowances and
other welfare benefits.

All salary calculations giving the total staff expenses included in the Statement of financial
performance of the Agency are externalized to the Office for administration and payment of
individual entitlements (also known as the Paymaster's Office-PMO) which is a central office
of the European Commission.

The PMO's mission is to manage the financial rights of permanent, temporary and
contractual staff working at the Commission, to calculate and to pay their salaries and other
financial entitlements. The PMO provides these services to other EU institutions and
agencies as well. The PMO is also responsible for managing the health insurance fund of
the Institutions, together with processing and paying the claims of reimbursement from staff
members. The PMO also manages the pension fund and pays the pensions of retired staff
members. PMO is being audited by the Court of Auditors.

The Agency is only responsible for the communication to the PMO of reliable information
allowing the calculation of the staff costs. It is also responsible to check that this information
has been correctly handled in the monthly payroll report used for accounting payroll costs. It
is not responsible for the calculation of the payroll costs performed by PMO.

Fixed assets-related expenses contain the charge of amortisation of intangible assets and
the depreciation of tangible assets for the financial year ending 31 December 2015.

Other administrative expenses consist of costs associated with the building, office running
costs, including the cost of physical inventory that does not qualify as financial assets, as
well as the cost of interim personnel.

Operational expenses include the cost of operational missions, meetings, workshops, public
hearings, REMIT project related costs and other operational expenditure incurred for the
functioning of the Agency.

11
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Administrative and operational 31 December 2015 31 December 2014

expenses € €
Staff expenses 5,5637,264.41 4,789,856.17
Fixed asset related expenses 201,703.51 260,414.54
Other administrative expenses 2,529,149.53 2,166,182.44
Operational expenses 882,197.64 2,158,420.82
9,150,315.09 9,374,873.97

3. Financial expense
Financial expenses relate to bank charges for operating the Agency bank accounts.

31 December 31 December
Financial expenses 2015 2014
€ €
Financial operations expenses 240.00 111.43

BALANCE SHEET - NOTES
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Assets are resources controlled by the Agency as a result of past events from which future
economic benefits or service potential is expected to flow.

Fixed assets are assets with a useful life of more than one reporting period. The valuation of
fixed assets in the financial statements of the Agency is based at their acquisition price. The
book value of these assets is equal to their acquisition price increased or decreased by
revaluations, decreased by depreciation and amounts written off.

For the record of fixed assets the Agency uses ABAC Assets2 as inventory application,
which is an integrated part of the ABAC platform. Two main categories can be distinguished:
intangible and tangible assets.

4. Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets recorded in the inventory of the Agency consist of assets without
physical substance and are represented by acquisitioned software and internally generated
intangible assets still under construction at year end. As intangible asset under construction
the Agency records the relevant costs of the IT platform build to assist the Agency with the
monitoring of the wholesale energy markets.

31 December 31 December

Intangible assets at book value 2°€15 20€14
Intangible assets 1,302.08 5,800.33
Intangible assets under construction 5,086,300.82 2,914,271.14

5,087,602.90 2,920,071.47

12
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5. Tangible fixed assets

Assets with a physical substance recorded in the inventory of the Agency consist mainly of

furniture, computer hardware, telecommunication and audio-visual equipment and other
fixtures and fittings.

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
Tangible fixed assets at book value € €
Plant and equipment 234.36 726.31
Computer hardware 189,628.36 200,981.87
Furniture and vehicles 71,451.92 64,944.27
Other fixtures and fittings 109,915.75 167,154.68

371,230.39 433,807.13
Amortisation and depreciation

Depreciation and amortisation as a systematic allocation of the loss in value over the useful
life of an asset is calculated using the straight-line method with the following rates:

Straight line depreciation and amortisation
Type of asset 9 P rate
Computer software 25%
Furniture 10%
Transport and kitchen equipment 12.5%
Computer hardware 25%
Technical equipment 25%
'Telecommunication audio-visual equipment | 25%

Details on the classification and depreciation amounts of the fixed assets can be found in the
following table:

13
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CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables

Receivables are carried at original invoice amount less any write-down for impairment. A
write-down for impairment of receivables is established only where there is objective
evidence that the Agency will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of the receivables, with the impaired amount being recognised in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

6. Short-term receivables
The Agency benefits from a direct exemption for VAT from the Republic of Slovenia for
purchases above the threshold amount of €60. For purchases where the direct exemption is
impracticable to obtain, the VAT is refunded by the Republic of Slovenia on a quarterly
basis.

The advance payments made to contractors and recorded as short-term pre-financing relate
to services derived from the long term project of REMIT expected to be provided in the
course of 2015.

Salary advances paid to staff members are processed and/or recovered by the Pay Master
Office (PMO) from the staff member salary in the month following that of the payment.

Deferred charges consist of prepayments made during the year mainly on subscriptions and
insurance premiums, recovery of overpaid salaries of staff members, and a deposit made for
the rental of furnished offices from Poslovni Center za Opravijanje Celovitih Pisarniskih
Storitev d.o.o.

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
€ €

VAT receivable 12,805.18 2,218.86
Short term pre-financing 1,674,736.61 2,039,894.36
Salary advances paid to staff 37,254.62 70,831.99
Deferred charges

Prepayments 180,226.71 39,875.12

Accrued income - 943.00

Deposits and guarantees 2,940.00 2,940.00

1,907,963.12 2,156,703.33

7. Cash and cash equivalents
The main bank account of the Agency and the imprest account are held with UniCredit AG
Germany based on a banking services contract signed between the two parties. At 31
December 2015 the balance of the main bank account contained the related cash needed to
honour the Agency’s financial obligations carried over into 2016.



ACER

Agency for the Cooperation
of Energy Regulators

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
€ €
Bank account 2,976,580.17 3,359,200.55
Imprest account 3,419.39 12,427.77
Petty cash 779.83 649.94

2,980,779.39 3,372,278.26

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

8. Current liabilities
As of 31 December 2015 the Agency settied most of its current obligations towards its
suppliers apart from one minor payment to be executed at the beginning of 2016.

Accrued expenses relate mainly to goods or service delivered at the end of the financial year
but for which the invoices have not been received amounting to €468,812.21. According to
Staff Regulation (Annex V — Leave, Article 4) the staff members are entitled to a
compensation equal to one thirtieth of his/her monthly remuneration for each leave day due
to him/her at the time of leaving the service. A holiday compensation amounting to
£€108,851.98 has been calculated and recognised as accrued expenses for all untaken
annual leave entitiements as at the end of the 2015 financial year.

The budgetary outturn result remains the property of the European Commission and the
Agency has an obligation to return the unused amount of the pre-financing. The 2015 related
budgetary outturn will be returned during 2016 upon request of the Commission.

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
€ €
Accounts payable 17.78 348.38
Accrued expenses 545,681.34 488,543.36
Repayable positive budgetary outturn 752,426.00 708,552.02
1,298,125.12 1,197,443.76

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments held by the Agency are cash and cash equivalents, receivables and
payables. The Agency has limited exposure to financial risks and it focuses on managing the
risks identified below:

Credit risk

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Agency's receivables defaulting on their
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss for the Agency.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the financial year 2015 is the carrying
amount of the assets shown under the notes 6 '‘Short-term receivable’, excluding the amount

16
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of short-term pre-financing that is already secured by bank guarantees, and note 7 ‘Cash

and cash equivalents’.

Credit risk associated with the Agency’s financial assets is minimal as the majority of them
are hold with institutions that have an external credit rating within the upper classes of the

scale or are with debtors who never defaulted on their debt. The table below presents the

credit quality of these assets that are neither impaired nor past due and that were grouped
into two categories, with and without external credit rating, for the current and previous

financial year.

Category: Financial Assets 2015
Counterparties with external credit
rating
Prime and high grade
Upper medium grade Cash and cash equivalents 2,980,779.39
Lower medium grade Refund of V.AT from Slovenian 12,805.18
customs office
Counterparties without external
credit rating
Debtors who never defaulted Recelyebles acCruals and 220,442.63
deferrals
TOTAL 3,214,027.20
Category: Financial Assets 2014
Counterparties with external credit
rating
Prime and high grade
Upper medium grade Cash and cash equivalents 3,372,278.26
. Refund of VAT from Slovenian
Lower medium grade customs office 2,218.86
Counterparties without external
credit rating
Receivables, accruals and
Debtors who never defaulted deferrals 114,590.11
TOTAL 3,489,087.23

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises when the Agency is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Agency is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of
business but has appropriate treasury management procedures in place to monitor forecast
cash flows and ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its legal commitments as

they fall due.
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The Agency’s liabilities have remaining contractual maturities as shown in the following
table:

At 31 December 2015 2014
Payables with third parties
Less than one year 17.78 348.38
Payables with consolidated entities
Less than one year 752,426.00 708,900.40
TOTAL 752,443.78 709,248.78
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates will affect the Agency’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments.

The Agency does not have any borrowings and as such no exposure to risks due to interest
rate fluctuations nor does it have any exposure to foreign exchange rates as all its holdings
of financial instruments are hold in Euro as functional currency.

The following table shows a summary of all financial assets expressed in Euro.

Exposure to Euro at 31 December 2015 2014
Monetary assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,980,779.39 | 3,372,278.26
Receivables with member Slates 12,805.18 2,218.86
Monetary liabilities
Payables with third parties 17.78 348.38
Payables with consolidated entities 752,426.00 708,552.02
Net position 2,241,140.79 | 2,665,596.72

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

There have been no changes in accounting policies for the financial year 2015.
OTHER DISCLOSURE

Contribution in kind

During the financial year 2015 the following contribution in kind has been accepted:
From the Council of European Energy Regulators:

- office space, logistical and secretarial support for the Agency’s liaison office in
Brussels free of any rent, fees and charges.

18
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Neither the legal title nor the economic ownership has passed to the Agency, therefore the
non-exchange component of these transactions is not accounted for in the accounts of the
Agency.

EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Agency has not identified any material event after its balance sheet date that would
have an impact on its financial performance and position.
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REPORT ON BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The approved subsidy from the Union for the Agency for the financial year 2015 amounted to
€11,266,000. There was no agreement reached for any contribution towards the Agency

from the EFTA states.

The following table presents the implementation of these appropriations for the period

between 1 January and 31 December 2015:

Title
Chapter Heading Appropriation | Committed |%Committed| ~ Paia | %Paia [ Balthee P':'y":'.':“u
1 (2) (3 (1-2) (23)
TITLE1 E dl lating to staff and
CHAPTER 11 Slaﬂ in active employment 6,348,200.00 5,968,872.16 94.02% 5,859,97408 9231% 379,327.84 108,898.08
CHAPTER 12 Missions and duty trave! 142,535.00 107,473.42 75.40%  102,667.55 72.03% 35,061.58 4,805.87
CHAPTER 13 Socio-medical infrastructure 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00
CHAPTER 14  Social senices 39,200.00 28,050.57 71.56% 18,448.80  47.06% 11,149.43 9,601.77
TOTAL TITLE1 6,529,935.00  6,104,396.15 " 93.48% 5,981,090.43 7 91.59% 425,538.85 123,305.72
TITLE 2 Agency's building and associated costs
CHAPTER20  Agency’s premisos costs 966,502.60  960,408.46 99.37%  882,035.18 91.26% 6,094.14 78,373.28
CHAPTER 21  Data processing 274,068.83 271,146 07 98.93%  119,573.27 43.63% 2,922.76 151,572.80
CHAPTER22 Mowable property and associated costs 253,760.00 252,381.69 99.46%  239,209.04 94.27% 1,378.31 13,172.65
CHAPTER 23  Cument administrative expenditure 617,233.00 549,558.24 89.04%  180,948.02 29.32% 67,674.76 368,610 22
CHAPTER24 249,688.57 248,119.62 99.37% 69,328.00 27.77% 1,568.95 178,791 62
TOTAL TITLE 2 2,361,253.00  2,281,614.08 ' 96.63% LMJ.SI 7 63.15% 79,638.92 790,520.57
TITLE3 Operational expenditure
CHAPTER 30  Representation expenses 21,400.00 10,343.09 48.33% 8,342.55 38.98% 11,056.91 2,000.54
CHAPTER 31  Operational missions 256,341.72 225,516.56 87.97%  192,091.63 74.94% 30,825.16 33,424 93
CHAPTER 32  Stakeholder imvolvement. public relations and website 240,861.00 234,907.12 97.53% 78,585.99 32.63% 5,953.88 156,321 13
CHAPTER 33  Translations 21,000.00 21,000.00 100.00% 16,698.60 79.52% 0.00 4,301 40
CAHPTER 34  Professional indemnity 5,000.00 5,000.00 100.00% 5,000.00 100.00% 0.00 0.00
CAHPTER 35  REMIT operalions 1,830,209.28  1,830,099.28 89.99%  662,601.10  36.20% 110.00 1,167,498.18
TOTAL TITLE 3 2,374,812.00 2,325,866.05' 97.98%  963,319.87 " 40.56% 47,945.95 1,363,546.18
GRAND TOTAL BUDGET 2015 11,266,000.00 10,712,876.28 e 95.09% 8,435,503.81 " 74.88% 553,123.72  2,277,372.47

A detailed description of the 2015 budget implementation can be found under the ‘Revenue’

and ‘Expenditure’ sub-sections of the ‘Budgetary Management’ section of this report.

Other revenue recorded by the Agency as assigned revenue stemming from the fund source
IC4 and amounting to €1,794.86 resulted from recovered overpaid amounts during the

financial year 2015 related to:

- recovery of one overpaid telecommunication subscription;

- recovery of the fee from one lost parking card, and

- receipt of reserve pay-out from the translation office.
None of these assigned revenues have been consumed during the financial year 2015 and
are therefore to be returned to the general budget.

The following table presents the implementation of these appropriations for the period

between 1 January and 31 December 2015:

20



ACER

Agency for the Cooperation
of Energy Regulators

Title
. Balance Balance
Chapter Heading Appropriation | Commitied | % Committed Paid % Paid commitments| payments
(1) 2 @) (1-2) (2-:8)

Title 2 Agency's building and associated costs

Chapter 22 Mowable property and BSSDCia'Bd costs 108.50 000 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 108.50 0.00
Postal charges and

Chapter 24 infrastructure 56.36 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 56.36 0.00
Total Title 2 164.86 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 164.86 0.00

Title 3 Operational expenditure

Chapter33  Translations 1630.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 _ 0.00% 1630.00 0.00
Total Title 3 1630.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 1630.00 0.00
Grand Total 1794.86 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 1794.86 0.00

A detailed description of this budget implementation can be found under the ‘Revenue’ and
‘Expenditure’ sub-sections of the ‘Budgetary Management’ section of this report.

In addition to the current year appropriations an amount of €2,736,509.85 was carried
forward from the financial year 2014 to honour the payment appropriations from the
commitments estimated by the Agency at that point in time. An amount of €2,538,215.97
was consumed by the end of the financial year 2015 with the minor difference of
€198,293.88 to be returned to the Commission during the financial year 2016.

The following table presents the implementation of these appropriations for the period
between 1 January and 31 December 2015:

Title
Chapter Heading Appr c d |%Committed| Paid | %Paid co:‘::‘l":“’:m
(1) ) @) (-2
TITLE1 Expenditure relatad to employees of the
CHAPTER 11 Staif in active employment 141,914 68 80,875.27 56.99% 80,875.27 56.99% 61,039.41
CHAPTER 12 Missions and duty travel 7,937.62 5,343.32 67.32% 534332 67.32% 2,594.30
CHAPTER 13 Soclo-medical infrastructure 29,935.20 29,935.20 100.00% 29,935.20 100.00% 0.00
CHAPTER 14  Socla) services 2,568.94 37.23 1.45% 37.23 1.45% 2,531.71
TOTAL TITLE 1 182,356.44 116,19].02' 63.72% 116,19].02' 63.72% 66,165.42
TITLE2 Agency's building and associated costs
CHAPTER 20  Agercy premises costs 65,574.86 40,902.80 62.38% 40,902.80 62.38% 24,672.06
CHAPTER 21  Data processing 225,562.93 225,343.55 99.90% 225,34355 99.90% 21938
CHAPTER 22  Movable property and assoclated costs 73,806.57 17,365.29 23.53% 17,365.29  23.53% 56,441.28
CHAPTER 23  Cument administrative expenditure 534,465.84 496,708.13 " 246  496,708.13 i 2.46 37,757.71
CHAPTER 24  Postal charges, tel and infrastr. 84,928.10 81,004.52 95.38% 81,004.52 95.38% 3,923.58
TOTAL TITLE 2 984,338.30 861,324.29 i 87.50% 861,324.29 7 87.50% 123,014.01
TITLE3 Operational expenditure
CHAPTER 30  Reprasentation expenses 100.00 100.00 100.00% 100.00 100.00% 000
CHAPTER 31  Operational missions 24,344.68 18,842.82 77.40% 18,842.82 77.40% 5,501.86
CHAPTER 32  Stakeholder involvement, public relations and website 10,347.06 7,314.47 70.69% 7,31447 70.6%% 3,032.59
CHAPTER 33  Translations 4,000.00 3,420.00 85.50% 3,42000 B85.50% 580.00
CHAPTER 35  REMIT operations 1,531,023.37  1,531,023.37 100.00% 1,531,023.37 100.00% 0.00
TOTAL TITLE3 1,569,815.11 1,560,700.66' 99.42% LSSOJCD.SS' 99.42_9‘ 9,114.45
GRAND TOTAL BUDGET CARRIED OVER FROM 2014 2,736,509.85 2.538,215.97' 92.75% 2,538,215.97 " 92.75% 198,293.88

More details on the implementation of these commitments can be found under the ‘Revenue’
and ‘Expenditure’ sub-sections of the ‘Budgetary Management’ section of this report.
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BUDGETARY OUTTURN ACCOUNT

The Budgetary Outturn Account presents on a cash basis the actual amounts cashed as
income and the amount of cash consumed to honour the payment of commitments, as well
the amounts of unutilised and cancelied appropriations.

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
€ €

INCOME

Commission subsidy 11,266,000.00 10,880,000.00

Other income - assigned revenue 1,794.86 15,960.46
TOTAL INCOME 11,267,794.86 10,895,960.46
EXPENSES
Expenditure related to employees of the agency -
Title |

Payments 5,981,090.43 5,181,457.00

Carry-forwards and carry-overs 123,305.72 182,356.44
Agency's building and associated expenses - Title
i

Payments 1,491,093.51 1,439,745.25

Carry-forwards and carry-overs 790,520.57 984,338.30
Operational expenditure - Title Ili

Payments 963,319.87 977,784.41

Carry-forwards and carry-overs 1,363,546.18  1,569,815.11
TOTAL EXPENSES 10,712,876.28 10,335,496.51
Total appropriations not utilised 554,918.58 560,463.95

BUDGETARY OUTTURN BEFORE SPECIAL ITEMS 554,918.58 560,463.95

Cancelled carry-overs 198,293.88 148,844.07
Exchange rate differences (786.46) (756.01)
BUDGETARY OUTTURN 752,426.00 708,552.01

BUDGET IMPLEMENTATION

The following tables present the detailed budget implementation by budget Titles, as well as
individual budget lines — Fund Source C1 (see also headings for C4 and C8).
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TITLE 1

Budget

Committed

Paid

Carry forward

Carry over

Total expenditure
Appropriations not utilized
Executed

TITLE 2

Budget

Committed

Paid

Carry forward

Carry over

Total expenditure
Appropriations not utilized
Executed

TITLE 3

Budget

Committed

Paid

Carry forward

Carry over

Total expenditure
Appropriations not utilized
Executed

TOTAL

Budget

Committed

Paid

Carry forward

Carry over

Total expenditure
Appropriations not utilized
Executed

BUDGET IMPLEMENTATION APPROPRIATION FUND SOURCE -
C1

31 December
2015
€

6,529,935.00
6,104,396.15
5,981,090.43
123,305.72
0.00
6,104,396.15
425,538.85
93.48%

2,361,253.00
2,281,614.08

1,491,093.51
790,520.57
0.00
2,281,614.08
79,638.92
96.63%

2,374,812.00
2,326,866.05
963,319.87
1,363,546.18
0.00
2,326,866.05
47,945.95
97.98%

11,266,000.00
10,712,876.28
8,435,503.81
2,277,372.47
0.00
10,712,876.28
553,123.72
95.09%
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Implementatlon of 2015 budget - fund source

c1

1200 7

1000 |

Millions

800
600 |
4.00

2.00

000

Committed

Carry forward
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ACER

Agency for the Cooperation
of Energy Regulators

BUDGET IMPLEMENTATION CURRENT YEAR — FUND

SOURCE C4
31 December
2015
€
TITLE 2
Budget 164,86
Appropriations not utilized 164.86
Executed 0.00%
TITLE 3
Budget 1,630.00
Appropriations not utilized 1,630.00
Executed 0.00%

Implementation of 2015 budget - fund source
ca

; a 280
: g 1.60 {7~
; 140
| 120
‘ 1.0 {7~
0.80 |
0.60 +~
040 |
[ ———
0.0 | .
0.00 I.’ — : e s = o T £
| . .
Rudget Committed Paid Carry forward
Balance Balance
Budget Official Budgeot ltem Appropriation| C itod | %C tod Paid % Paid
tino Doscription 1) @) @) (3) 3n1) °°"'('1"_';')“°"' P’é’_’;‘;"‘
A-2220 | Transportation costs 108.50 0,00% 108.50
Sum: 108.50 0.00%) 108.50
Telecommunications
A-2410 |subscriptions and charges 56.36. 0.00% 56.36
Sum: 56.36 0.00%; 56.368
B3-300 |Translation at COT 1,630.00. 0.00% 1630.00
Sum: 1,630.00 0.00% 16830.00
Sum: 1,794.86 0.00% 1794.88
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BUDGET IMPLEMENTATION — FUND SOURCE C8

TITLE 1
Budget
Committed
Paid
Total expenditure

Cancelled carry-forwards
Executed

TITLE 2
Budget
Committed
Paid
Total expenditure

Cancelled carry-forwards
Executed

TITLE 3
Budget
Committed
Paid
Total expenditure

Cancelled carry-forwards
Executed

TOTAL
Budget
Committed
Paid
Total expenditure
Cancelled carry-forwards
Executed

31

December

2015
€

182,356.44
116,191.02
116,191.02
116,191.02
66,165.42
63.72%

984,338.30
861,324.29
861,324.29
861,324.29
123,014.01

87.50%

1,569,815.11
1,560,700.66

1,560,700.66
1,560,700.66

9,114.45
99.42%

2,736,509.85
2,538,215.97
2,538,215.97
2,5638,215.97

198,293.88
92.75%
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Millions

iImplementation of 2015 budget - fund source

C8

200 17
1.80

1.60

140
120
100 7
0.80 |
0.60 |
040 |
0.20
TR P s

Committad




(43

o LL'EZE6 [%0b° LS LE'96V'OL 20" LS LE'96V0L 8Y 6LY'0Z wns
5] o %00 00 26°L60°L %00 00t 26°L60'L 860" L Mom e Alejes pue yjeeH 1E02-V
5] 2L1'E266 %9 8t 6E B6E'6 %98t 6E£ 86E'6 ‘Z2E'6 L sBuiping oE€02v
1O Poue(|leAINS pue AJUNJeS
[+] 9 9LOE %0222 St°LEO'8 =rx73 Sv°LEOS 16°2v0°LL 1wuns
o EE %2186 L0°220'9 %L} B6 20 L2809 "6EL'D saueus)uIBW pue Bulues|D L LoV
5] €062 ©E8 0P 8E€ 00’2 %EB OV 8E 00’2 ‘606t seminn o102V
) looz: [eevoea [oo'ootz fevoea |oorz [ooooe'e [:wns | |
] oozt [=vo €0 |ooootr’z |%vo'es |oo'oot’e ['ooe'e | s1500 jerowed | L00z-v|
o [LzLese oSt L ez 2e = |ez-2e v6'89s'z [:wns | |
5] Jvzrese %SV L |ee 2 %St |ez ce ‘695’2 | nels jo elejlem |e10os | Lovi-v|
o o ~«00"001 0Z'SE6'6Z l*«00°001 Z'SE66E 0Z SEE'6Z cwns
o o %00 00t 02 SE6 68 %00 00 02 SE6'6C "GE6'62 woewdinbe 00E LV
pUeR SOOWNIEeS |[esipa
o € Vr6SeT [2e2E" L9 CE'EVE'S %eZE 29 ZEEVES 29 LEG'L wnsg
[5) S0 005 b %98 LS 26°650°'2 “%98°'LS 26°'650°'2 ‘095'€E ners 80O S
o 6lL2Ee %06 L6 oz vES'S %06 L6 o0z veE9'S ‘998'e J10100I1g sesuadxe Uo|ISSIN LOZ LV
o 90298 %96 et 02 6v9 %962t oz ev9 “LLS'H TS 00Z1-v
] ZeLEL8L [%65° LT PO'GEL'L %6522 VO GELL 9€°9.8'ST Jwns
) €8 6EVT % L0 Se vs o8’ L EAGE rS 08P’ L ‘026'S @oue}S|SSe anensiuiwpyY LLLLY
o 6V L62V L %GEBE 0S°'859'S %SE'BE 05'859'S ‘956°6 | SeonIes wueu| OLL LV
pue [eoue|d Aejuswe|ddnsg
o 65°09€8Z %25 S€E 6Z2°ZZT'S L [%25°S€E 6Z°ZZTIS L 88'C86'EV NS
[5] 65 09£8C %2S GE 62°229'St %8S SE 62°229'S}H ‘E86'EV JueunnIoel 091 LV
o) palejas aianipuadxy
[:) S LY6E L [%59°08 vE'ELL'BS %9908 V6 ELLOS rY°'SS0'TL Swns
o S LYEEL %S9 08 v6'ELL'8S %G9°08 v6 ELL'8S ‘550°2L ners FEIR
10} uopewoju) pue Bujuies]
(e-2) & (1re) © (1) @ W ot
sjuawAied sjULUITIWIWOD piled apwwo) uoyduosag wayj 3ebpng [ePYo0
! piled P pepiwwo) uopeudoiddy 1obpng
aouejeg asuejeg % %

89 924n0S punj — pieamuoy palued suoneldoidde jo uonejuswaldwi 196png psjielsg

sioie[nSay £S1au
uoneiadoor) ay3 103 Lou

v

dHOV



e}
38

) S9'Z268ES 2.05°99 86°'6LY'LY f05°99 86°6LYLY €9°ZLE' LL ‘wnsg

0 0 %00 001 00°000° L %00 001 00°000°L 000t MIOMIBN Saj)pusby N3 YEESV

0 L1'0ZLE2 %62 ¥9 veL8Ll'ey %62 9 veL8l'ey ‘25599 sbupsow LEESVY

sioleinbey Jo pseog

0 vSeet %b .l 96 YL ZED'E %v. 96 v ZES'E ‘SSL'E sbupsaw oceev
pleog anlelSIuIWpY

[0 SZLEL e L L6 00°262'SvY et 126 262SvY 00°226'8SY rwng

[3) 5] %00 001 00'005°'9 %00° 001 00°00S'9 ‘00S'9 sasuadxa ypne |euwsang SegESV

) 000E %000 000 ‘000'E uonensIuIWpY veeEZVv
- uonEeNSUOD Ppadxy

0 0 %00 001 00 0vv'961L %00° 001 00 0bY'961L ‘ovv'a6L Apmoa|3 £2ESV
- uoflelNsuosd uadxgy

0 0 %00 001 00°986'69 %00° 001 00'986'69 ‘9B6'69 SED - UONENSUOD Nadx3 22ESVY

[5) o %0000t 00 L28'2L1 %00° 001 00 148221 128221 CINW - Uopelnsuod uadx3y L2ESY

[s] SeLoL %00°0 000 ‘SZL'oL sasuadxa jeba ozee-v

i) 90'0vL LS 28 SL L6YV'E ACET) SLL6YE LZ LES'Y cwng

o 9002 %15 28 SLL6V'E %1528 SLL6V'E tES'Y sajiddns 200 pue Aisuonels 00€2V

o [vo-6ze€es |2t v [vo-e9e’e szt |voeacz |so0'862‘9s |rwng | |

3] |vo'ecees |12y |voeoe'e |stet |roese’e | s62'9s 1B suonisinboe Aseig | oeeev|

[ [vz'ziS52 | | w000 o [vezise [fuwns [ ]

0 |veeise | | [%00°0 looo ['zise | S1S00 uonepodsued | ozeev|

) o Jc00'001L _ [sz's66'vL 00001 [s2-g66t1L [sz966‘vL [rwng | |

5] lo |00 001t  |sz'966'tvL |=<00°001 [se 9661 |'966'tL | aiMmiwny Jo aseydind| oLzev|

[5) 8e'61LE %0666 SSEVE'SEES % 06°66 SS'EVESEZ £6°295'S22 Twns

o [ %00°00 L £2766'S8 %00°001 €2 v66'S8 ‘$66'S8 sus Alanodal Jelsesig €012V

0 8EGLE %189 66 £8'282'LEL % b8 66 £8'282'LEL ‘206' €1 1| suopduasans 20L2v

O o) %00 00 L e LLO'L % 00001 ve LZ0'L "LL0'L alemyjos LtoLev

[5) 0 %00°00 L S2'S66 %00'001 S2'S66 ‘566 Sa|qewnsuoD ooLev

[ EV'ZESOL % L 8°G9 v0°S522°02 e L8'SO $0°'SLZ0Z 1v°208'0€ ‘wng

0 [§) %00 001 99'6v8'2 %00°001 99°6v8'2 ‘0s8'e jujew dinbs cepwyoIPNY L0V

0 €Y' ZESOL %EE 29 ge'ser' L1 %EE O 8E'SEY'LL ‘856'2¢e sBuipnng orog-v
uo asmpuadxe Jayi0

(e-2) (&) (Lr€) © (Lr2) @ w o
sjuawied SJUBWHWWOD pied peRjwwon uopdussag way| yabpng jePWO
pied panjwwo) uoneudoiddy 19bpng
asusjeg asuejeg o o

saoje[nBay L312ug jo
uoneiadooy) ayy 103 K>ualdy

dHOV



143

5] 88'€6286 L %G2'26 £6°S128€ESe %GL'26 26'5128EST $8'60S'9€L'2 rwng
[ ) %.00°001 LE ETO'LES'L %.00°001 LEEZOLESL LE'ESO'LESL ‘wns
0 ) %00°00 L 95 2LLG'LLL %00 001 9GS 24G'LVL "82G'LV2 Asueynsuoo uedxs pue || £05-€8
0 5] %0000 1 L1986V €95 %0000 L9 86V'E9S "66'€95 see) pue suopduasqns L0S-€8
sasuedi| juswdojensp SIHY
o ) %0000 02 Lv6'6ve %00°00 L 0g Lv6'6vE ‘Lv6'eve suopesedo 00S-€8
pue juswAoldep BupsoH
o Joes [ee05's8 [oo'ozv'e fe0s'se [ozve [oo000'v [;wng | ]
9] Joss |%05 58 Joo'oet'e [x05°S58 Jooozt'e | coo'v | 14D 1= uone|suedt] ooe-e8d|
) 65 ZEOE 2%69°0L LY VLEL re69°02 LU LEL 90°ZVE'OL rwns
0 5] %00 001 00°080°L %00° 001 00°080'L 080" L uogonpoid suodey £02-€8
5 65°2E0E %8e L9 LY vES'9 %82 L9 LY vES'S L92'6 Seouelsjuod 002-€8
sdoysxiom sbBuneey 2)1qnd
o 98°LOSS %0122 z8'zve'st eeov 22 z8'Zrest 89 PYE'VE ‘wng
o 206LLE %SG LL 82°0€EE'S %SGS LL 82°0EE'S 6vv L uawuedsag Buuoluon 201-€9
1948 SUOISSIA |leuopriadO
5] 6£'9.82 %06 08 9e°G8L'2L %06'08 EEEEED ‘290'st wewuedsag AlPwos|a LtoL-eqa
SuoisSIN [euopesadO
5] '90S %BETL BL LSE'L %BE L BLLZE L ‘veE|'L Wwewuedeq ooL-£9
sSBL) SUOISSIN [euoneledo
) o °.00°001 00°001L %00°00 L 00t 00°00L rwns
o o “%00°00 00°001L %00°001 00001 GE 1o10001Q 000-€8
- sesuedxe uoneluasesdeoy
[ Z9°L ec00°001L L1°968'92 200'001 1L1°96892 €2°268'9L wng
o EC %00 00+ 11°968'92 %00°001 1196892 ‘86894 wewdinbe ogvev
18410 pUue alemple
o 207102 Pt S €S v8'ZLL'E et €S e ZLLE 98°EL8'S rwng
5] 201022 %G ES PEZLL'E %S €S PEELL'E ‘v18's sebieyo pue suopdussans oLbav
SUONEDIUNWWODIB|O |
o [ve0zzL lez6 vy [2s° s66 oz Y [25°566 Jrsoe'e [;wns |
[5] lve022L |%e6 vy [25's66 | X2 4 |25 S566 | AT | sebieys |e1sod| 00vEY
(e-2) ey (1e) © (1) @ W oo
sjuswied SjUsWIWIWOD 1ed COTITHTH uonduosaq way| 1ebpng je10Y40
! P pled P Y pepiuwo) uoneudoiddy 1obpng
asuejeg oduejeg % %

sioeinday £81aujy jo
o - |

uonriadooD) ay3 105 £Aoua

d4d0

vV



ACER

Agency for the Cooperation
oF Energy Regulators

BUDGETARY OUTTURN RECONCILIATION

Given the different basis of the presentation of the information between the budgetary and
financial statements, reconciliation is performed between the two systems, as follows:

[ RECONCILIATION BETWEEN ACCRUAL BASED ECONOMIC RESULT AND CASH BASED BUDGET RESULT

Lg

2015 2014
Economic result for the year 1,364,055.55 580,271.40
Adjustment for accrual items (items not in the budgetary result but included in the ic result)
Adjustments for Accrual Cut-off (reversal 31.12.N-1) {453,702.51)] (432,417.24)
Adjustments for Accrual Cut-off (cut- off 31.12.N) 371,660.57 453,702.51
Recovery orders remaining open at 31.12.2015 (1,626.67 ) (7,022.50 )
Unpaid invoices at year end but booked in charges 17.78 0.00
Depreciation of intangible and tangible assets | 201,703.51 261,016.37
Accrued income 0.00 220,341.91
Payments made from carry over of payment appropriations 2,638,215.87 | 4,926,158.68
Adjustment for budgetary items (item included in the budgetary result but not in the economic resuit)

Asset acquisitions (2,306,658.20 )| (1,850,048.07 )
New pre-financing paid in the year 2015 and remaining open as at 31.12,.2015 365,157.75 | (1,564,894.36 )
New pre-financing received in the year 2015 and remaining open as at. 31.12.2015 752,426.00 708,552.01 |
Payment appropriations carried over to N+1 (2,277,372.47 )| (2,736,509.85 )
Cancellation of unused carried over payment appropriations from previous year 198,293.88 148,844.07
Other non-reconciled items (531.62) (198.93 )
totall 751,639.54 707,796.00

Budgetary result 752,426.00 708,552.01
Including amount of exchange rate differences (786.46) (756.01 )|

Amount not explained (0.00) 0.00




ACER

Agency for the Cooperation
of Energy Regulators

BUDGETARY MANAGEMENT

Budgetary principles

The budget of the Agency has been established in compliance with the principles of unity,
budgetary accuracy, annuality, equilibrium, unit of account, universality, specification, sound
financial management and transparency, as set out in the Agency’s Financial Regulation.

Subsidy from the general budget of the Union

Commitment and payment appropriations amounting to €11,266,000 were allocated to the
Agency in 2015 from the general budget of the Union. These resources were allocated by
the Agency among its Titles as follows:

ACER Budget 2015 €

Title | 6,529,935
Title Ii 2,361,253
Title 11l 2,274,812
Total 11,266,000

Budget and accounting management systems

In order to record and keep track of the budgetary transactions, the Agency uses ABAC, the
same financial system used by the Commission, with the SAP system integrated as back-
end for the accounting part.

The Business Objects web platform is used as the reporting tool. The workflow access in
ABAC allows for an instant audit trail and provides the authorising officer with an overview
on the segregation of duties compliance as required under the four-eyes’ principle.

The inventories are managed by the Agency in accordance with its Financial Regulation and
the system used to record inventory items is ABAC Assets2.

Nomenclature

The nomenclature of appropriations is as follows:

C1: Appropriations voted in the current budget

C4: Internal assigned revenue (current year)

C8: Commitments carried forward corresponding appropriations

IC1: Universal income voted in the budget
IC4: Internal assigned revenue

REVENUE
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For the financial year ending 31 December 2015 the Agency’s budget was funded by a
subsidy from the general budget of the Union amounting to €11,266,000. On top of the
annual subsidy an amount of €1,794.86 was recognised under the fund source IC4 as

assigned revenue stemming from recovered overpaid amounts.

Appropriations not used at the end of the financial year 2015 amounting to €752,426 and
made up from:

- unused 2015 appropriations amounting to €554,918.58,

- cancelled appropriations carried over from 2014 amounting to €198,293.88, and

- losses from transactions involving exchange rate operations amounting to €786.46
will be returned to the Commission in the course of 2016.

EXPENDITURE

Current year appropriations — C1

Ci i Payment
Title Heading Original budget | Commitments execution M=/ execution
€ € % € o
TITLE 1 |EXPENDITURE RELATING TO EMPLOYEES OF THE AGENCY 6,529,935.00 6,104,396.15| 93.48% 5,981,080.43 91.59%
TITLE 2 |AGENCY'S BUILDING AND ASSOCIATED COSTS 2,361,253.00 2,281,514.08' 96.63% 1,491,093.51 63.15%
TITLE3 |OPERATIONAL EXPENDITURE 2,374,812.00 2.325,866.05' 97.98% 963,319.87 40.56%
TOTAL BUDGET 2011 11,266, 000.00' 10,712,875.28' 95.09%] 8,435,503.81 74.88%
Title 1

The budget allocated under Title 1 was implemented to a level of 93.48% during the financial
year 2015. The slightly low implementation of commitment appropriations level is a result of
vacancy gaps during the year and application of adjustments remuneration and rate of
contribution to the pension scheme of officials and other servants of the European Union as
well as the correction coefficient for Slovenia. The drop in the country’s correction coefficient
that has been larger than the positive salaries adjustment resulted in budgetary savings.

Title 2

The Agency managed to finalise most of the tender procedures launched during the financial
year 2014 and this resulted in a high implementation of the allocated budget under Title 2.

The renewal of few large contracts that expired towards the year-end led to a low
implementation of the payment appropriations resulting in the need to carry forward these
funds into the following financial year.

Title 3

The Agency managed to place all the planned orders before the end of the year, which
resulted in a high implementation of the commitment appropriation. However, the low
implementation of the payment appropriations was influenced by the nature of the REMIT
project that extends over several years.
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Current year assigned revenue — C4

& - o [ - Payment
A [~ F :
Title Heading = revenue aexecution - execution
€ € % € %
TTLE2 JAGENCY'S BUILDING AND ASSOCIATED COSTS 164 .86 0.00% 0.00%
TITLE 3 |OPERATIONAL EXPENDITURE 1,630.00 0.00% 0.00%
TOTAL 1,794.86 0.00%| 0.00%

The total amount of €1,794.86 recorded as assigned revenue for the financial year 2015
related to recovered overpaid amounts and insurance refunds has not been used during the
year and will be returned to the Commission during 2016 as part of the total unused funds

for the year 2015.

Carry forward appropriation — fund source C8

Heading

Budget carried
forward from 2014
€

Commitments
€

C

execution
%

e

Payment
execution
%

EXPENDITURE RELATING TO EMPLOYEES OF THE AGENCY

182,356.44

116,191.02

63.72%|

116,191.02

63.72%

AGENCY'S BUILDING AND ASSOCIATED COSTS

984,338.30

861,324.29

87.50%

861,324 29

87.50%

OPERATIONAL EXPENDITURE

1,569,815.11

1,560,700.66

99.42%)

1,560,700 66

99.42%

TOTAL

2,736,509.85

2,538,215.97

92.75%|

2,538,215.97

92.75%|

Title 1

Appropriations carried forward under Title 1 related mainly to recruitment costs for the
vacant positions published during 2014, staff training costs, schooling fees and missions
expenditure. The cancelled amounts will be returned to the Commission during 2016.

Title 2

Most of the appropriations carried forward under this title were consumed in order to honour
obligations the Agency had towards its suppliers. The unused portion was cancelled and is
to be returned to the Commission.

Title 3

Appropriations carried forward under this Title were to a high extend used to cover the
contracted obligations the Agency entered into the year before. The minor savings will be
returned to the Commission during 2016.

Budget transfers

During the financial year 2015 a number of budgetary transfers took place in order to
reallocate resources from areas where budgetary savings were identified towards areas of
scarce resources to ensure the achievement of the year's objectives.

There were eight lots of approved budgetary transfers made within and between titles
including one budget transfer above the 10% limit as approved by the Administrative Board.
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The following table presents the detailed budgetary transfers made during the financial year.
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ACER

Agency for the Cooperation
of Energy Regulators

ESTABLISHMENT PLAN

The number of temporary posts as authorised under the 2015 budget are as follows:

2015

Function group and grade Authorised under EU Budget

Permanent Posts Temporary Posts

AD 16 0 0

AD 15

AD 14

AD 13

AD 12

AD 11

AD 10

AD9

AD 8

AD7

Njojo|M]olbA|O|jO| 2] O

AD 6

AD5

-
w

AD total

[2]
©

AST 11

AST 10

AST 9

AST 8

AST 7

AST 6

AST 5

| =lO|J]O|O|O}|O| O

AST 4

AST 3

—
w

AST 2

AST 1

AST total 15

[~A -l Nel ol ol No) Nol Jol o} ol Nol Nol Noll N-J Nol Nol Nol Nol Nol Nol Nol Nol Nol NoX Ne)

TOTAL 54

GRAND TOTAL 54
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Agency for the Cooperation
of Energy Regulators

ANNEX 3

DECISION AB n° 12/2016

OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE BOARD OF THE AGENCY FOR THE
COOPERATION OF ENERGY REGULATORS

of 7 June 2016

on the adoption by analogy of Implementing Rules to the Staff Regulations

THE ADMINISTRATIVE BOARD OF THE AGENCY FOR THE COOPERATION OF
ENERGY REGULATORS,

Having regard to Regulation (EC) No 713/2009 of the European Parliament and of the
Council of 13 July 2009 establishing an Agency for the Cooperation of Energy Regulators'’
and, in particular, Article 28(2) thereof,

Having regard to Staff Regulations of officials and the Conditions of Employment of Other
Servants of the European Communities (hereinafter respectively “Staff Regulations” and
“CEOS”), laid down by Council Regulation (EEC, EURATOM, ECSC) No 259/68!%, as
amended by Regulation No 1023/2013, and, in particular, Article 110 (1) and (2) of the Staff
Regulations,

Having regard to Decision AB No 27/2011 of the Administrative Board of the Agency for the
Cooperation of Energy Regulators of 22 September 2011 on setting up a Staff Committee,
and, in particular, Article 4 thereof,

Having regard to favourable opinion of the Staff Committee of the Agency for the
Cooperation of Energy Regulators of 29 of April 2016 on the proposed adoption of the
Implementing Rules,

Having regard to Communication C(2014)6543 of 26 September 2014 from Vice-President
Seféovié to the Commission on the guidelines on the implementation of Article 110(2) of the
Staff Regulations with regard to the implementing rules applicable in the agencies'®, and in
particular point 3(1) thereof,

Having regard to Decision AB 03/2010 of the Administrative Board of the Agency for the
Cooperation of Energy Regulators of 6 May 2010 on the Rules of Procedure of the
Administrative Board, as amended, and, in particular, Article 8(1) thereof,

Whereas:

170J L211, 14.8.2009, p.1
18 OJ L 56, 4.3.1968, p.1.
19 C(2014) 6543.
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Agency for the Cooperation
of Energy Regulators

Article 110 (2) of Staff Regulations stipulates that implementing rules adopted by
the European Commission (‘Commission’) to give effect to Staff Regulations,
including the general implementing provision, shall apply by analogy to the
agencies. The Commission should inform the agencies of any such implementing
rules without delay after adoption.

Such implementing rules should enter into force at the agencies nine months after
their entry into force at the Commission or nine months after the date on which the
Commission informed the agencies of the adoption of the respective implementing
rule, whichever is later.

On 7 October 2014, the Commission communicated to the Agency for the
Cooperation of Energy Regulators (‘the Agency’) its guidelines on the
implementation of Article 110(2) of the Staff Regulations. Point 3(1) of the
guidelines lays down the procedure in cases where the agency considers that it
should apply a Commission rule by analogy. The procedure requires that the
Director draws up a draft Board decision aimed at applying the Commission's rules
and consults the Staff Committee on the draft decision.

On 12 January 2016, pursuant to Article 110(2) of the Staff Regulations, the
Commission informed the Agency on the implementing rules adopted on 8 January
2016 and entered into force on 9 January 2016. In application of Article 110(2) of
the Staff Regulations and in absence of derogation, these rules should apply by
analogy to the Agency as from 13 October 2016.

HAS ADOPTED THIS DECISION:

Article 1

The Commission Decision C(2015)9720 on Article 55a of the Staff Regulations and Annex
IVa thereto concerning part-time work as adopted by the Commission on 8 January 2016 and
entered into force on 9 January 2016 shall apply by analogy to the staff of the Agency.

Article 2

This Decision shall enter into force on the date following that of its adoption. It shall be
communicated to all staff and published on the intranet of the Agency.

Done at Ljubljana, on 7 June 2016.

For the Administrative Board:

Dr. Romana Jordan

Chair of the Administrative Board
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